
 

 

SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICTS 1-6 
 

PORT ST. LUCIE  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 9, 2022 
10:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.southerngrovecdd1.org 
www.southerngrovecdd2.org 
www.southerngrovecdd3.org 
www.southerngrovecdd4.org 
www.southerngrovecdd5.org 
www.southerngrovecdd6.org 

 
 

561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile   

http://www.southerngrovecdd1.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd2.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd3.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd4.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd5.org/


 
AGENDA 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’s 1-6 
Tradition Town Hall 
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011  

Meeting ID: 334 102 5011 
Dial In at: 1 929 436 2866 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
February 9, 2022 

10:30 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………........Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public Not on the Agenda  

F. Consent Items 

1. Approval of November 10, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes............................................Page 2 

2. Approval of WA #19-144-165; Heron Preserve (Phase 2) SWM/Plat…………………………Page 8 

3. Approval of WA #19-144-167; Innovation Square at Tradition – Irrigation…………………..Page 10 

4. Approval of WA #19-144-168; Tom Mackie Blvd – Stormwater System……………...……...Page 12 

5. Approve and Ratify WA #19-144-101; Oculus Development………………………………….Page 14 

6. Approve and Ratify WA #19-144-166; Legacy Park - Middle Drive Access………………….Page 16 

7. Approve and Ratify WA #19-144-169; Duda Canel - Expansion 2……………………………Page 18 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Ratifying and Approving Change Order No. 9; Project No. 2021-203 - Becker Road  
Extension Phase 1; by District No 1……………….....................................................................Page 20 

2. Consider Ratifying and Approving 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 6); District No. 5  
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)…………………………Page 33 

3. Consider Ratifying and Approving 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 7); District No. 5  
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)…………………………Page 51 

4. Consider Ratifying and Approving 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 8); District No. 5 
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)…………………………Page 55 

5. Consider Ratifying and Approving 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 9); District No. 5 
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)…………………………Page 68 

6. Consider Approval of 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 10); District No. 5 
      Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)…………………………Page 91 

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011


7. Consider Approval of 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 11); District No. 5 
      Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)………………………...Page 113 

8. Consider Approving ITB #2020-04; Continuing Services Agreement for Miscellaneous  
Construction Activities – Recommendation to Award………………………………………...Page 118 

9. Consider Approving Partial Assignment of Contractor Agreement to CDD No. 5; 
(Paar Drive [West] Water Mains – 2021 CI Project)……………...…………………………..Page 128 

10. Appointment of One Voting Member to the Tradition/SG Irrigation System Rate Committee -   
Seat No. 5 

11. Accept Resignation of Chairman Jeremy Bunner- District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 4;  
District No.’s 3 & 5 / Seat No. 2; & District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 3 

12. Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 4;  
District No.’s 3 & 5 / Seat No. 2; & District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 3 

13. Accept Resignation of Supervisor Steven Dassa – District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 4 

14. Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 4 

15. Accept Resignation of Supervisor Jeff Snyder – District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1 

16. Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1 

17. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01; Election of Officers……………………………………….Page 182 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer’s Report 

4. Financial Report (Under Separate Cover)……………………..................................................Page 188 

5. Founder’s Report 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn  



SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-6 
FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Southern Grove Community Development District Nos. 1-6 
(“Districts”) will conduct Regular Board Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) for the 
purpose of conducting the business of the Districts that may properly come before the Board.  The 
following meetings will be held at 10:30 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, 
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the following dates: 

October 13, 2021 
*November 10, 2021*

December 8, 2021
January 12, 2022 

*February 9, 2022*
March 9, 2022
April 13, 2022 

*May 11, 2022*
June 8, 2022
July 13, 2022

*August 10, 2022*
September 14, 2022

*An Irrigation System Rate Committee Meeting will take place at 9:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall
located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the above dates, as indicated.*

The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida 
law for community development districts.  Meetings may be continued to a date, time and place to be 
specified on the record.  A copy of the agenda for the meetings may be obtained from the District 
Manager’s office located at 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 

There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; therefore, a 
speaker telephone may be present at the meeting location so that one or more Supervisors may attend 
the meeting and be fully informed of the discussions taking place.  

Any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a disability or physical 
impairment should contact the District Office at 772-345-5119 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at 
least five calendar days prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 
Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office. 

Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at a meeting is advised that they will need a record 
of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-6 

www.southerngrovecdd1.org 

PUBLISH:  ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE    10/01/21 

1



SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-6 
Tradition Town Hall 
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011 
Meeting ID: 334 102 5011 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
November 10, 2021 

10:30 a.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Board Meeting of the Southern Grove Community Development District Nos. 1-6 of 
November 10th, 2021, was called to order at 10:34 a.m. in the Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 
SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987. 

B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on October 1st, 2021, as legally required.   

C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in 
order to proceed with the meeting: 

CDD #’s 1-6 
Chairman Jeremy Bunner: #1,2,3,4,5,6 Present 
Vice Chair Lorie Moccia: #1,2,3,4,5,6 Present 
Supervisor Carolyn DeSanti: #1,2 Present via Zoom 
Supervisor Vacant: #1,2 - 
Supervisor Anissa Cruz: #1,2,3,5 Present 
Supervisor David Graham: #3,4,5,6 Present via Zoom 
Supervisor Jeff Snyder: #4,6 Absent 
Supervisor Wes McCurry: #3,4,5,6 Present 

Staff members in attendance were: 

District Manager B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Special District Services, Inc. 
Assistant District Manager Jessica Wargo Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Dan Harrell Gonano & Harrell Law 

Also present via Zoom were: District Manager - Andrew Karmeris Special with Special District 
Services, Inc; District Engineer - Kelly Cranford with Culpepper and Terpening. (See attached sign-in 
sheet) 

D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA

Staff requested the addition of (7) items under “New Business”: 

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011


1 – (New Business/H-14) Resignation of Jeff Snyder: District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1  

2 – (New Business/H-15) Appointment to Vacant Board Seats: District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1  

3 – (New Business/H-17) First Amendment to Greenway Maintenance Contract/A Quality Bushog 

4 – (New Business/H-18) Becker Road Extension Phase 1; Project No. 2021-203 Change Order 8 

5 – (New Business/H-19) WA #19-144-158; Lot 8 Retail Development Properties Phase 2 

6 – (New Business/H-20) WA #19-144-159; Sansone Extension & Paar Drive  

7 – (New Business/H-21) WA #19-144-160; Del Webb Phase 5B & 6 (Plat & Surface Water) 
 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Approve 
the Agenda as amended. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
F. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

1. September 1, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Minutes of the September 1, 2021 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Approve 
all item(s) under Consent. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no matters of old business to come before the Board. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-31 for District No.’s 1-6; Adopting Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Final 
Amended Budget 

 
                                         Resolution No. 2021-31 was presented, entitled: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-31 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTHERN 
GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-6 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2020/2021 BUDGET, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 190, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-31. 
 

 

2. Engagement Letter from DMBH; 2021 Audit Proposal 

3



A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Moccia and passed unanimously to Approve the  
the FY: 2021 Audit Proposal from DMBH and authorize DMBH to perform the FY2020-2021 financial 
audit. 
 

3. Ratify and Approve 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 3); District No. 5  
        Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure) 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Approve and 
Ratify the 2021 Bond Requisition No. 3 for Guettler Brothers Construction, LLC. 
 

4. 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 4); District No. 5 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 
(Community Infrastructure) 
 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Graham and passed unanimously to Approve 
the 2021 Bond Requisition No. 4 for Blue Goose Construction, LLC. 
 

5. 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 5); District No. 5 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 
(Community Infrastructure) 
 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Approve 
the 2021 Bond Requisition No. 5 for Guettler Brothers Construction, LLC. 
 

6. Ratify and Approve Change Order No. 7; Becker Road Extension Phase 1; by District 
No. 1 
 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Ratify and  
Approve Change Order No. 7 for Becker Road Extension Phase 1. 

 
7. Ratify, Approve, and Authorize CPM Landscaping Contract 

 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Cruz and passed unanimously to Approve and 
Ratify the Authorization of the CPM Landscaping Contract. 
 

8. Ratify and Approve Blue Goose Contract for Ditch Cleanout; by District No. 1 
 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Cruz and passed unanimously to Approve and 
Ratify the Blue Goose Contract for Ditch Cleanout. 
 

9. Board Direction of Aquatic Insect Control 

Mr. Sakuma reviewed the prior management team’s midge/aquatic insect control. 
 
The Board agreed to discontinue the administrative control of all aquatic insects and allow each district 
to control their own area. 
 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Cruz and passed unanimously to allow each 
district to control and hire their own aquatic pest control company if and as needed. 
 

10.  Resignation of Supervisor Joel Arrington - District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 2  

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to Accept the  
resignation of Supervisor Joel Arrington. 

4



 
11.  Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 2 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Ms. Moccia and passed unanimously to appoint 
Mr. Frank Covelli to District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 2. Mr. Covelli took the Oath of Office before  
the meeting continued.  
 

12.  Resignation of Supervisor Lorie Moccia – District No.’s 1 &2 / Seat No.3;  
 District No.’s 3 & 5 / Seat No. 5 and District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 4 

 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to Accept the  
resignation of Supervisor Lori Moccia. 
 

13.  Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s 1 &2 / Seat No.3; District  
        No.’s 3 & 5 / Seat No. 5 and District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 4 

A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to appoint 
Mr. Steven Dassa to District No.’s 1 & 2 / Seat No. 3; District No.’s 3 & 5 / Seat No. 5 and District  
No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 4. Mr. Dassa took the Oath of Office before the meeting continued.  
 

14. Resignation of Jeff Snyder: District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1  
 

No action was taken at this time. 
 

15. Appointment to Vacant Board Seats: District No.’s 4 & 6 / Seat No. 1  
 

No action was taken at this time. 
 

16. Resolution No. 2021-30; Election of Officers 
 

Resolution No. 2021-30 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-6, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Dassa and passed unanimously to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-30. 
 

17. First Amendment to Greenway Maintenance Contract/A Quality Bushog    
 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to Approve 
First Amendment to Greenway Maintenance Contract with A Quality Bushog.    
 

18.  Becker Road Extension Phase 1; Project No. 2021-203 Change Order 8; 
Approve added cost to connect to the City of PSL fiber optic system, based on         
funding by the benefitted parcel and granted a time extension of 10 additional       
 days. 

5



 
A Motion was made by Mr. Graham, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to Approve 
Becker Road Extension Phase 1; Project No. 2021-203 Change Order 8. 

 
19. WA #19-144-158; Lot 8 Retail Development Properties Phase 2; Approve the existing 

connection to the Tradition Irrigation System under the following conditions:  
 

1 – Payment of the application and inspection fees. 
2 – Reimbursement to the CDD for repair costs.  

 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Dassa and passed unanimously to Approve WA 
#19-144-158. 

 
20.  WA #19-144-159; Sansone Extension & Paar Drive 

 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to Ratify WA 
#19-144-159. 

 
21.  WA #19-144-160; Del Webb Phase 5B & 6 (Plat & Surface Water);  

 Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater   
 System under the following conditions: 
 

1 – Responding to the outstanding Request for additional information to the CDD Engineer’s 
satisfaction. 

 
A Motion was made by Mr. Bunner, seconded by Mr. Dassa and passed unanimously to Approve WA 
#19-144-160.  
                          
I.     ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Manager’s Report 
 
Mr. Sakuma had nothing further to report at this time. 

 
2. Attorney’s Report 

 
Mr. Harrell had no further report. 
 

3. Engineer’s Report 
 

Ms. Cranford had no additional items to note. 
 

4. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Karmeris gave an overview of the financials. 

 
5. Founder’s Report  

 
No Founder’s report was offered. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

6



 
There were no Board comments.  
 
K. ADJORNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Bunner moved for adjournment at 
11:01a.m., Mr. Covelli seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 
 

7



Southern Grove Community Development District
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022 

Subject: SG - Heron Preserve (Phase 2) SWM/Plat 
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-165 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG6.005.1021.X 

Background: 
On October 18, 2021, the Southern Grove CDD Engineer received an application 
for a Work Authorization for Heron Preserve Phase 2B, connecting the stormwater 
management system for an 84 unit 22.7-acre residential community.  The 1.9-acre 
lake and pipes connecting it to the remainder of the CDD's master stormwater 
system will be turned over to the CDD for long term operation and maintenance. 

This application also includes plat Heron Preserve at Tradition Phase 2B. 

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater 
System under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction.

Authorize the CDD Chair to sign plat mylar on behalf of the CDD. 

Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.06 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes, Tier 3 

Fiscal Information:  This project includes infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It has been 
included in the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  January 25, 2022 

8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CULPEPPER & 

TERPENING INC 

 

WA 19-144-165 

 
Project No. 19-144.SG6.005 

Date: 01/25/2022 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

Heron Preserve 2B  
SITE LOCATION MAP 

Heron Preserve Phase 2B 

WA 19-144-165 

9



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022

Subject: SG - Innovation Square at Tradition - Irrigation 
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-167 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG5.057.1121.I 

Background: 
This application is a request to connect to the Tradition Irrigation system for 
irrigation of 0.47 acres.  

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Master Stormwater System 
under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction.

Location: Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.05 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 
expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  December 10, 2021 

10



11



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022

Subject: SG - SW Tom Mackie Blvd  
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-168 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG6.008.1121.W 

Background: 
On November 11, 2020, the Southern Grove CDD Engineer received a Work 
Authorization application for a surface water system connecting to and modifying 
the Southern Grove Master Stormwater System within CDD 6.  The proposed 
roadway will be operated and maintained by the City of Port St. Lucie.  The piped 
ditch crossing will be dedicated to and maintained by the CDD. 

The association Plat 26 was recorded in November 2019. 

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater 
System under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction.

Location: Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.06 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 
expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  December 9, 2021 

12



13



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022

Subject: SG - Oculus  
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-101.1 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG5.014.1121.W 

Background: 
On November 10, 2021 the CDD Engineer received a Work Authorization 
application for a surface water system connecting to the Southern Grove 
Stormwater System within CDD 5.  The project does not include infrastructure 
proposed for maintenance or operation by the CDD. 

A Mass Grading Work Authorization for this parcel which was previously 
approved by the CDD Board on January 8, 2020  (WA 19-144-101).  

Recommended Action: 
Ratify the CDD Engineer’s approval of the Work Authorization. 

Location: Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.05 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 
expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  December 1, 2021 

14



15



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022

Subject: SG - Legacy Park - Middle Drive Access  
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-166 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG3.017.1121.W 

Background: 
On November 9, 2021, the Southern Grove CDD Engineer received a Work 
Authorization application for a surface water system connecting to the Southern 
Grove Stormwater System within CDD 3.  The proposed 640 linear foot long 
roadway will be operated by the City of Port St. Lucie.  The project includes 
installation of a 60-inch culvert connecting Lakes L11D and L11C.  This culvert will 
be turned over to the CDD for operation and maintenance. 

The project falls within Plat 35 which was approved by the CDD Board on May 12, 
2021 (WA 19-144-134).  

Recommended Action: 
Ratify the CDD Engineer’s approval of the Work Authorization. 

Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.03 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes 

Fiscal Information: This project includes infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  The culvert 
maintenance has been included within the CDD Stormwater System 
operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  December 1, 2021 

16



17



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date February 9, 2022 

Subject: SG- Duda Canal Expansion 2  
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-169 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG3.018.1221.W 

Background: 
On December 13, 2021,  the CDD Engineer received an application for mass 
grading of approximately 110 acres including construction of 21 acres of lakes 
which will be dedicated to the CDD for perpetual operation and maintenance. 

Recommended Action: 
Ratify the CDD Engineers approval of the Work Authorization. 

Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.03 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes 

Fiscal Information: This project includes infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  The lake 
maintenance has been included in the CDD Stormwater System operational 
budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  January 23, 2022 

18



19



Southern Grove Community Development 
District Board Meeting Date:  February 9, 

2022 BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Subject:  Becker Road Extension Phase 1 
CDD Project No. 2021-203 Change Order 9 
C&T Project No. 20-203 

Background: 
At the November 4, 2020 Board of Supervisors meeting the Becker Road 
Construction Project was approved including the assignment of the construction 
contract to the CDD.  The contract assignment was executed by the CDD 
Chairman on February 25, 2021.  Initial contract cost was $2,019,432.32 with a 
duration of 220 days. 

Authorization for Guettler Brothers Construction Change Order No. 9 for 
($243,968.05) and 90 additional days of Contract Time. The added cost is 
needed due to delete work not performed and to add pay items for additional 
work including utility changes, fiber optic system changes, additional pumping 
and to pay for drainage pipe and mitered end sections items not covered in the 
plans. The added time is needed due to supply chain issues, availability of 
concrete and to allow time needed to produce and process turnover items 
required by PSLUSD.    

Modified contract will be a total of $1,920,813.40 with a duration of 351 days.  

Recommended Action: 
Approve the additional contract time and reduced contract scope and cost. 

Location:  Tradition Community Development District CDD.03 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

Fiscal Information:   Decrease in contract amount to be credited to the “benefitted parcel”. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Marcelo Dimitriou, PE / Kelly E Cranford, PE  December 20, 2021  

20



xxxxxxxxxxxxx Jeremy Bunner, Chairman

12/20/2021

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



REQUISITION NO._6___

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

(A) Requisition Number: 6

(B) Name of Payee: Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.

(C) Amount Payable: $126,260.67

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021

Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____

OR

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition,

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____

AND 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as

applicable.

[Include if applicable] 

33



Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

By:  

Responsible Officer 

Date:____________________________________ 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii)

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof.

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

[Include as applicable] 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

12/03/2021

34



 

 

 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

 

 

By:    

Name:    

Title:   

Date:  

 

 

35

bterpening
Typewritten Text
J.P. "Butch" Terpening

bterpening
Typewritten Text
District Engineer 

bterpening
Typewritten Text
November 24, 2021

bterpening
JPT



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Ms. Sylvia Bethel
Accounting
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

September 14, 2021
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 93037

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Professional Services through August 31, 2021
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 173.25 210.00 36,382.50
Sr. Engineering Designer 1.50 100.00 150.00
Sr. Construction Inspector 458.00 125.00 57,250.00
Construction Inspector 31.00 90.00 2,790.00

Totals 663.75 96,572.50
Total Labor 96,572.50

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
  Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable Expense
3/30/2021 Terpening, Thomas Drone Flight 14.16
4/23/2021 Terpening, Thomas Drone 16.00

Total Reimbursables 30.16 30.16

 Unit Billing
Large Copy
MILEAGE

1,125.81

                   $97,728.47Total this Invoice

  

36



8:39:38 AMInvoice 93037 Dated 9/14/2021Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Tuesday, September 14, 2021Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/1/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/4/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/5/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/9/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/10/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/11/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/11/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/15/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/16/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 3/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/19/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/22/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/23/2021    .50 210.00  105.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/30/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/31/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/1/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/2/2021    2.75 210.00  577.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/5/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/6/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

4/6/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/7/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/9/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/12/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/13/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/14/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/21/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

4/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/26/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/27/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 4/27/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/28/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Page 2

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

37



Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/30/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/3/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/4/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/4/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/5/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/6/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/11/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/13/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/14/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

5/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/18/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/20/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/21/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/21/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/24/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/28/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/1/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/2/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/3/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/7/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/8/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/9/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/10/2021    2.75 210.00  577.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

6/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/11/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/14/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/15/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/17/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/18/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/22/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/23/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/25/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/28/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/1/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/2/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/6/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/7/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/8/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/12/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

7/12/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Page 3

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

38



Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/14/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/20/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/23/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/26/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/29/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/3/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/4/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/5/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/6/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/10/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
'Butch'

8/11/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/12/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/13/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/18/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/20/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/23/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/24/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/26/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/31/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00

Sr. Engineering Designer
Coapman, Edgar 6/15/2021    .75 100.00  75.00
Coapman, Edgar 6/16/2021    .75 100.00  75.00

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 3/1/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/2/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 3/3/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 3/4/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/5/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 3/10/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 3/11/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/15/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/16/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/19/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 3/22/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 3/23/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 3/24/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 3/25/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 3/26/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 3/29/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/30/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00

Page 4

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

39



Terpening, Thomas 3/30/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/31/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/1/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 4/2/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/5/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/6/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 4/12/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 4/13/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/14/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 4/15/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 4/16/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/19/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Campbell, Jamie 4/20/2021    .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 4/20/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/21/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Rake, Edward 4/21/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/22/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Rake, Edward 4/22/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/23/2021 Ovt 4.00 125.00  500.00
Rake, Edward 4/23/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Terpening, Thomas 4/23/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/27/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 4/28/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Campbell, Jamie 4/29/2021    .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 4/30/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 5/3/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 5/4/2021    7.50 125.00  937.50
Christensen, Frans 5/5/2021    8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Rake, Edward 5/6/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 5/7/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 5/11/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 5/12/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 5/13/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 5/14/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 5/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 5/17/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 5/18/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 5/19/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 5/20/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 5/21/2021 Ovt 8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Christensen, Frans 5/24/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 5/25/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 5/26/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 5/27/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 5/28/2021    1.25 125.00  156.25
Christensen, Frans 5/28/2021 Ovt 3.75 125.00  468.75
Christensen, Frans 6/1/2021    9.50 125.00  1,187.50
Christensen, Frans 6/2/2021    7.50 125.00  937.50

Page 5

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

40



Christensen, Frans 6/3/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 6/4/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/7/2021    7.00 125.00  875.00
Christensen, Frans 6/8/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/9/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/10/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/11/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 6/11/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 6/14/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 6/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/16/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 6/17/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Rake, Edward 6/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 6/18/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 6/21/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/22/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/23/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 6/24/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 6/25/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 6/25/2021 Ovt .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 6/28/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/29/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/30/2021    7.00 125.00  875.00
Christensen, Frans 7/1/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 7/6/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 7/7/2021    8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Christensen, Frans 7/8/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/12/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 7/13/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 7/14/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 7/16/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/19/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/20/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/21/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 7/22/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 7/23/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 7/27/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 7/28/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 7/29/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 7/30/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/4/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/5/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 8/6/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/7/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 8/11/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50

Page 6

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

41



Christensen, Frans 8/12/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/13/2021 Ovt 4.50 125.00  562.50
Rake, Edward 8/16/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/18/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/19/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 8/19/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/20/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 8/21/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/23/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/24/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Rake, Edward 8/25/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/26/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/27/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 8/27/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/30/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/31/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50

Construction Inspector
Green, Tanner 6/30/2021    8.00 90.00  720.00
Green, Tanner 7/1/2021    8.00 90.00  720.00
Green, Tanner 7/2/2021    7.00 90.00  630.00
Green, Tanner 7/9/2021    1.00 90.00  90.00
Green, Tanner 7/13/2021    7.00 90.00  630.00

Totals 663.75 96,572.50
Total Labor 96,572.50

   $96,572.50Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $96,572.50

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

  Reimbursable Expenses
Reimbursable Expense

EX 00000000267
6

3/30/2021 Terpening, Thomas / Drone Flight / 
21.26 miles @ 0.555

14.16

EX 00000000268
5

4/23/2021 Terpening, Thomas / Drone / 24.02 
miles @ 0.555

16.00

Total Reimbursables 30.16 30.16

Unit Billing
3/1/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
3/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
3/9/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
3/10/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
3/10/2021 Large Copy 36.0 Copies @ 0.35 12.60
3/15/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
3/31/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
3/31/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/1/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

Page 7

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

42



4/2/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
4/2/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/5/2021 Large Copy 30.0 Copies @ 0.35 10.50
4/6/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
4/6/2021 Large Copy 14.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.90
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/12/2021 Large Copy 55.0 Copies @ 0.35 19.25
4/12/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/12/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/12/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
4/14/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/14/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
4/14/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/14/2021 Large Copy 18.0 Copies @ 0.35 6.30
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/26/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/26/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/26/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
4/28/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/28/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
4/30/2021 Large Copy 14.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.90
5/3/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/3/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/18/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/18/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/20/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/21/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/21/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/21/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/21/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
6/7/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
6/8/2021 Large Copy 3.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.05
6/8/2021 Large Copy 3.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.05
6/8/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
7/26/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
7/27/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45

Page 8

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

43



7/27/2021 Large Copy 9.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.15
7/27/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/3/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
8/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/5/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
8/13/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/23/2021 Large Copy 8.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.80
8/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/25/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/27/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

MILEAGE
3/1/2021 Miles 31.0 Miles @ 0.56 17.36
3/2/2021 Miles 36.0 Miles @ 0.56 20.16
3/3/2021 Miles 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
3/4/2021 Miles 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/5/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
3/11/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
3/16/2021 Miles 14.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.84
3/19/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
3/22/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
3/23/2021 33.0 Miles @ 0.56 18.48
3/24/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/25/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/26/2021 24.0 Miles @ 0.56 13.44
3/29/2021 Miles 24.0 Miles @ 0.56 13.44
3/30/2021 Miles 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
3/31/2021 Miles 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
4/1/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
4/2/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
4/5/2021 Miles 30.0 Miles @ 0.56 16.80
4/6/2021 Miles 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
4/13/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
4/14/2021 23.0 Miles @ 0.56 12.88
4/16/2021 11.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.16
4/19/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/20/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/20/2021 6.0 Miles @ 0.56 3.36
4/21/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/21/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/22/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/22/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
4/23/2021 9.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.04
4/23/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
4/26/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40

Page 9

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

44



4/27/2021 Miles 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
4/28/2021 Miles 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
4/29/2021 6.0 Miles @ 0.56 3.36
4/30/2021 42.0 Miles @ 0.56 23.52
4/30/2021 Miles 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
5/3/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/3/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/4/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
5/5/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
5/6/2021 46.0 Miles @ 0.56 25.76
5/6/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/7/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/11/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
5/12/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/13/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/14/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
5/17/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/17/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/18/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/19/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
5/20/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/21/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
5/24/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/25/2021 9.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.04
5/26/2021 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
5/27/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/28/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/1/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/2/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
6/3/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/4/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/7/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/8/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/9/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
6/10/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/11/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
6/14/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/15/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
6/16/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
6/17/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/18/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/21/2021 27.0 Miles @ 0.56 15.12
6/22/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/23/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
6/24/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
6/25/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/28/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/29/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
6/30/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60

Page 10

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

45



7/6/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/7/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
7/8/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
7/9/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/12/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/13/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
7/15/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/16/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/19/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
7/20/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/21/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
7/22/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/23/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
7/26/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/27/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/29/2021 Miles 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/30/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/4/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/4/2021 38.0 Miles @ 0.56 21.28
8/5/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
8/9/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/11/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
8/12/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
8/13/2021 14.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.84
8/17/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/18/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/19/2021 35.0 Miles @ 0.56 19.60
8/20/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
8/21/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
8/23/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/24/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
8/26/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/27/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/30/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/31/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
8/31/2021 32.0 Miles @ 0.56 17.92

1,125.81

Total this Phase $1,155.97

$97,728.47Total this Project

$97,728.47Total this Report

Page 11

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

46



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Ms. Sylvia Bethel
Accounting
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

November 18, 2021
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 93421

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Professional Services through October 31, 2021
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 46.75 210.00 9,817.50
Sr. Construction Inspector 147.50 125.00 18,437.50

Totals 194.25 28,255.00
Total Labor 28,255.00

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
    Unit Billing
Large Copy
MILEAGE

277.20

                   $28,532.20Total this Invoice

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
93037 9/14/2021 97,728.47
Total 97,728.47

47



10:04:40 AMInvoice 93421 Dated 11/18/2021Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Thursday, November 18, 2021Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/1/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/2/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/7/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/9/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/14/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/15/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/16/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/20/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/21/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/22/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/24/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/27/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/29/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/1/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/4/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/7/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/8/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/14/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/15/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/18/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/19/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/20/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/21/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/26/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/28/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 9/1/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/3/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/7/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/8/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/10/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 9/13/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/14/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 9/15/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 9/16/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00

Page 2

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

48



Christensen, Frans 9/16/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 9/17/2021 Ovt 3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 9/18/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/20/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 9/21/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/22/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/23/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/24/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 9/27/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/28/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/29/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/30/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 10/1/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 10/4/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/5/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/6/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 10/8/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 10/9/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/11/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 10/12/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 10/13/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/14/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Rake, Edward 10/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/18/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/19/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 10/19/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/20/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Rake, Edward 10/20/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 10/21/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 10/21/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/22/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 10/22/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 10/23/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/25/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 10/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 10/27/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Rake, Edward 10/27/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 10/28/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50

Totals 194.25 28,255.00
Total Labor 28,255.00

   $28,255.00Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $28,255.00

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

   Unit Billing
9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

Page 3

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

49



9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
9/27/2021 Large Copy 12.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.20
9/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

MILEAGE
9/1/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/3/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/7/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
9/9/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/10/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/13/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/14/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
9/15/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
9/16/2021 22.0 Miles @ 0.56 12.32
9/17/2021 11.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.16
9/18/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/20/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
9/21/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/23/2021 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
9/24/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/27/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/29/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/30/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/1/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
10/4/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
10/5/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/6/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/8/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/9/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
10/11/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
10/12/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/14/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
10/18/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
10/20/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
10/22/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
10/23/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
10/25/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
10/26/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20

277.20

Total this Phase $277.20

$28,532.20Total this Project

$28,532.20Total this Report

Page 4

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

50



1 

 

REQUISITION NO.__7__ 

 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 7 

 

(B) Name of Payee: BEEP, Inc. 

 

(C) Amount Payable: $70,000.00 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

 

 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021 

Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____ 

 

OR 

 

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working 

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the 

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition, 

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not 

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____ 

 

 

AND 

 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition 

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as 

applicable.   

 

 

 

[Include if applicable] 

 

51



2 

Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

By:  

Responsible Officer 

Date:____________________________________ 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii)

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof.

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

[Include as applicable] 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

12/03/2021

52



3 

 

 

 

 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

 

 

By:    

Name:    

Title:   

Date:  

 

 

53

bterpening
Typewritten Text
November 24, 2021

bterpening
Typewritten Text
District Engineer 

bterpening
Typewritten Text
J.P. "Butch" Terpening

bterpening
JPT



BEEP. Inc.
13485 Veterans Way
#110
Orlando, FL 32827
321-348-6879

INVOICE

Invoice #: 229

Invoice Date: 06/11/21

Amount Due: $70,000.00

Bill To:

Tradition Community Development
District No. 1, c/o Special District
Services, Inc.
2501 Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
United States

 

Due Date Terms P.O. Number

07/11/21 Net 30 ORDER #TR-
20210210

 
 
 

Item Description Quantity Price Amount

Pre-Payment 10% Pre-Payment for 2 Navya Autonom DL4
autonomous vehicles 1 $70,000.00 $70,000.00

 

 
Bank Information for ACH Payment:
M&T Bank
1350 I Street NW, Suite 500
Washington, DC 20005
Phone: 202-434-7048
 
Routing #: 052000113
Account #: 9862190775
Account Name:  Beep, Inc.
Checking account (0775)

Subtotal: $70,000.00
Sales Tax: $0.00

Total: $70,000.00
Payments: $0.00

Amount Due: $70,000.00

 
 
To pay online, go to https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1

54

https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1


1 

 

REQUISITION NO.__8__ 

 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 8 

 

(B) Name of Payee: Guettler Brothers Construction, LLC 

 

(C) Amount Payable: $55,461.51 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

 

 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021 

Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____ 

 

OR 

 

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working 

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the 

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition, 

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not 

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____ 

 

 

AND 

 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition 

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as 

applicable.   

 

 

 

[Include if applicable] 

 

55



2 

Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

By:  

Responsible Officer 

Date:____________________________________ 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii)

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof.

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

[Include as applicable] 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

12/03/2021

56



57



$5
5,
46
1.
51

12
/1
/2
1

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



1 

REQUISITION NO.__9__

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

(A) Requisition Number: 9

(B) Name of Payee: Guettler Brothers Construction LLC

(C) Amount Payable: $146,278.73

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021

Acquisition and Construction Account  __X_____

OR

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition,

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____

AND 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as

applicable.

[Include if applicable] 

68



2 

Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

By:  

Responsible Officer 

Date:____________________________________ 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii)

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof.

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

[Include as applicable] 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

12/21/2021

69



3 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

By:  

Name:  

Title: 

Date: 

James P. Terpening, Jr.
President
12/21/21

70



$6
4,
42
5.
54

12
/2
1/
21

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



$8
1,
85
3.
10

12
/2
1/
21

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



1 

 

REQUISITION NO.__10__ 

 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 10 

 

(B) Name of Payee: Culpepper & Terpening, Inc. 

 

(C) Amount Payable: $143,550.81 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

 

 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021 

Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____ 

 

OR 

 

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working 

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the 

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition, 

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not 

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____ 

 

 

AND 

 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition 

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as 

applicable.   

 

 

 

[Include if applicable] 

 

91



2 

 

Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

 
 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

 

 

By:    

 Responsible Officer 

 

Date:____________________________________ 

 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the 

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii) 

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof. 

 

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

 

[Include as applicable] 

 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

92



3 

 

 

 

 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

 

 

By:    

Name:    

Title:   

Date:  

 

 

93



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Ms. Sylvia Bethel
Accounting
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

December 31, 2021
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 93753

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Professional Services through December 31, 2021
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 36.00 210.00 7,560.00
Project Engineer, PE 1.00 135.00 135.00
Sr. Construction Inspector 75.00 125.00 9,375.00

Totals 112.00 17,070.00
Total Labor 17,070.00

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
    Unit Billing
Large Copy
Blueprint Color
MILEAGE

220.14

                   $17,290.14Total this Invoice

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
93037 9/14/2021 1,155.97
93421 11/18/2021 28,532.20
Total 29,688.17

94



3:18:09 PMInvoice 93753 Dated 12/31/2021Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Monday, January 24, 2022Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/1/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/2/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/3/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/4/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
'Butch'

11/5/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/8/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/10/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/12/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/15/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/17/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/19/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/22/2021    2.75 210.00  577.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/29/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 11/30/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/1/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/6/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/9/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/10/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/13/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/15/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 12/23/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Project Engineer, PE
Cabrera, PE, Roberto 12/16/2021    .50 135.00  67.50
Cabrera, PE, Roberto 12/22/2021    .50 135.00  67.50

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 11/1/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 11/2/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 11/3/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 11/4/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 11/5/2021 Ovt 4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 11/8/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Rake, Edward 11/8/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 11/9/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 11/10/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 11/10/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00

Page 2

Project 9375320-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

95



Christensen, Frans 11/11/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 11/12/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 11/13/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 11/16/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 11/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 11/18/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 11/22/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 11/29/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 11/30/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 12/1/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 12/2/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 12/2/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 12/3/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 12/14/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 12/15/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 12/20/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 12/21/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Rake, Edward 12/23/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Rake, Edward 12/28/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 12/29/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00

Totals 112.00 17,070.00
Total Labor 17,070.00

   $17,070.00Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $17,070.00

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

   Unit Billing
10/1/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/5/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
10/5/2021 Large Copy 3.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.05
10/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/13/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/15/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/15/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/15/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/26/2021 Large Copy 10.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.50
10/28/2021 Large Copy 12.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.20
10/28/2021 Large Copy 9.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.15
10/28/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
10/28/2021 Large Copy 15.0 Copies @ 0.35 5.25
10/29/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
10/29/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/1/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/1/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
12/1/2021 Large Copy 13.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.55
12/1/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75

Page 3

Project 9375320-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

96



12/6/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
12/6/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
12/6/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
12/8/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
12/8/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
12/8/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
12/15/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
12/16/2021 Large Copy 8.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.80
12/20/2021 Large Copy 12.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.20
12/20/2021 Large Copy 10.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.50
12/20/2021 Large Copy 10.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.50
12/21/2021 Large Copy 10.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.50
12/22/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
10/7/2021 Blueprint Color 4.0 BLUE-COLOR @ 1.50 6.00
10/7/2021 Blueprint Color 4.0 BLUE-COLOR @ 1.50 6.00
10/7/2021 Blueprint Color 4.0 BLUE-COLOR @ 1.50 6.00
10/7/2021 Blueprint Color 4.0 BLUE-COLOR @ 1.50 6.00

MILEAGE
11/1/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
11/2/2021 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
11/3/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
11/4/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
11/5/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
11/9/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
11/13/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
11/16/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
11/17/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
11/18/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
11/22/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
11/30/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
12/1/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
12/2/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
12/3/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
12/16/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
12/20/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
12/21/2021 11.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.16

220.14

Total this Phase $220.14

$17,290.14Total this Project

$17,290.14Total this Report

Page 4

Project 9375320-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

97



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Ms. Sylvia Bethel
Accounting
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

September 14, 2021
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 93037

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Professional Services through August 31, 2021
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 173.25 210.00 36,382.50
Sr. Engineering Designer 1.50 100.00 150.00
Sr. Construction Inspector 458.00 125.00 57,250.00
Construction Inspector 31.00 90.00 2,790.00

Totals 663.75 96,572.50
Total Labor 96,572.50

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
  Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable Expense
3/30/2021 Terpening, Thomas Drone Flight 14.16
4/23/2021 Terpening, Thomas Drone 16.00

Total Reimbursables 30.16 30.16

 Unit Billing
Large Copy
MILEAGE

1,125.81

                   $97,728.47Total this Invoice

  

98



8:39:38 AMInvoice 93037 Dated 9/14/2021Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Tuesday, September 14, 2021Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/1/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/4/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/5/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/9/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/10/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/11/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/11/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/15/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/16/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 3/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/19/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/22/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

3/23/2021    .50 210.00  105.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/30/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/31/2021    .75 210.00  157.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/1/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/2/2021    2.75 210.00  577.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/5/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/6/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

4/6/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/7/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/9/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/12/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/13/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/14/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/21/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

4/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/26/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/27/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 4/27/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/28/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00

Page 2

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

99



Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 4/30/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/3/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/4/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/4/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/5/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/6/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/11/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/13/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/14/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

5/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/18/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/20/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/21/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Matthes, P.E., Stefan 5/21/2021    .50 210.00  105.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/24/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 5/28/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/1/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/2/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/3/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/7/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/8/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/9/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/10/2021    2.75 210.00  577.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

6/10/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/11/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/14/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/15/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/17/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/18/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/22/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/23/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/25/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/28/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 6/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/1/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/2/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/6/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/7/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/8/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/12/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
"Butch"

7/12/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Page 3

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

100



Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/14/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/16/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/20/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/21/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/23/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/26/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/29/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 7/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/3/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/4/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/5/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/6/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/10/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Terpening, Jr., P.E., James 
'Butch'

8/11/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00

Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/12/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/13/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/16/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/18/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/19/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/20/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/23/2021    2.25 210.00  472.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/24/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/26/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 8/31/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00

Sr. Engineering Designer
Coapman, Edgar 6/15/2021    .75 100.00  75.00
Coapman, Edgar 6/16/2021    .75 100.00  75.00

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 3/1/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/2/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 3/3/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 3/4/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/5/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 3/10/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 3/11/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 3/15/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/16/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/19/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 3/22/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 3/23/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 3/24/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 3/25/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 3/26/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 3/29/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/30/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00

Page 4

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

101



Terpening, Thomas 3/30/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 3/31/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/1/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 4/2/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/5/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/6/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 4/12/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 4/13/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/14/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 4/15/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 4/16/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 4/19/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Campbell, Jamie 4/20/2021    .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 4/20/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/21/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Rake, Edward 4/21/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/22/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Rake, Edward 4/22/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 4/23/2021 Ovt 4.00 125.00  500.00
Rake, Edward 4/23/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Terpening, Thomas 4/23/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 4/27/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 4/28/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Campbell, Jamie 4/29/2021    .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 4/30/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 5/3/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 5/4/2021    7.50 125.00  937.50
Christensen, Frans 5/5/2021    8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Rake, Edward 5/6/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 5/7/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 5/11/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 5/12/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 5/13/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 5/14/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 5/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 5/17/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 5/18/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 5/19/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 5/20/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 5/21/2021 Ovt 8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Christensen, Frans 5/24/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 5/25/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 5/26/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 5/27/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 5/28/2021    1.25 125.00  156.25
Christensen, Frans 5/28/2021 Ovt 3.75 125.00  468.75
Christensen, Frans 6/1/2021    9.50 125.00  1,187.50
Christensen, Frans 6/2/2021    7.50 125.00  937.50

Page 5

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

102



Christensen, Frans 6/3/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 6/4/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/7/2021    7.00 125.00  875.00
Christensen, Frans 6/8/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/9/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 6/10/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/11/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 6/11/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 6/14/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 6/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/16/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 6/17/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Rake, Edward 6/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 6/18/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 6/21/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/22/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 6/23/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 6/24/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 6/25/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 6/25/2021 Ovt .50 125.00  62.50
Christensen, Frans 6/28/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/29/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 6/30/2021    7.00 125.00  875.00
Christensen, Frans 7/1/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 7/6/2021    6.50 125.00  812.50
Christensen, Frans 7/7/2021    8.00 125.00  1,000.00
Christensen, Frans 7/8/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/12/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 7/13/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 7/14/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 7/16/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/19/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/20/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 7/21/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 7/22/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 7/23/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 7/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 7/27/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 7/28/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 7/29/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 7/30/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/4/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/5/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 8/6/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/7/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 8/11/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50

Page 6

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

103



Christensen, Frans 8/12/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/13/2021 Ovt 4.50 125.00  562.50
Rake, Edward 8/16/2021    1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/17/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/18/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/19/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 8/19/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 8/20/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 8/21/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/23/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 8/24/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Rake, Edward 8/25/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/26/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/27/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 8/27/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 8/30/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 8/31/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50

Construction Inspector
Green, Tanner 6/30/2021    8.00 90.00  720.00
Green, Tanner 7/1/2021    8.00 90.00  720.00
Green, Tanner 7/2/2021    7.00 90.00  630.00
Green, Tanner 7/9/2021    1.00 90.00  90.00
Green, Tanner 7/13/2021    7.00 90.00  630.00

Totals 663.75 96,572.50
Total Labor 96,572.50

   $96,572.50Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $96,572.50

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

  Reimbursable Expenses
Reimbursable Expense

EX 00000000267
6

3/30/2021 Terpening, Thomas / Drone Flight / 
21.26 miles @ 0.555

14.16

EX 00000000268
5

4/23/2021 Terpening, Thomas / Drone / 24.02 
miles @ 0.555

16.00

Total Reimbursables 30.16 30.16

Unit Billing
3/1/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
3/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
3/9/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
3/10/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
3/10/2021 Large Copy 36.0 Copies @ 0.35 12.60
3/15/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
3/31/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
3/31/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/1/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

Page 7

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

104



4/2/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
4/2/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/5/2021 Large Copy 30.0 Copies @ 0.35 10.50
4/6/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
4/6/2021 Large Copy 14.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.90
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/7/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/12/2021 Large Copy 55.0 Copies @ 0.35 19.25
4/12/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/12/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/12/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
4/14/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/14/2021 Large Copy 4.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.40
4/14/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/14/2021 Large Copy 18.0 Copies @ 0.35 6.30
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/19/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/26/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/26/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
4/26/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
4/28/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
4/28/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
4/30/2021 Large Copy 14.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.90
5/3/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/3/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/18/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/18/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
5/20/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/21/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/21/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
5/21/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
5/21/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
6/7/2021 Large Copy 5.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.75
6/8/2021 Large Copy 3.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.05
6/8/2021 Large Copy 3.0 Copies @ 0.35 1.05
6/8/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
7/26/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45
7/27/2021 Large Copy 7.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.45

Page 8

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

105



7/27/2021 Large Copy 9.0 Copies @ 0.35 3.15
7/27/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/2/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/3/2021 Large Copy 6.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.10
8/3/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/5/2021 Large Copy 2.0 Copies @ 0.35 .70
8/13/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/23/2021 Large Copy 8.0 Copies @ 0.35 2.80
8/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/25/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/27/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
8/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

MILEAGE
3/1/2021 Miles 31.0 Miles @ 0.56 17.36
3/2/2021 Miles 36.0 Miles @ 0.56 20.16
3/3/2021 Miles 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
3/4/2021 Miles 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/5/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
3/11/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
3/16/2021 Miles 14.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.84
3/19/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
3/22/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
3/23/2021 33.0 Miles @ 0.56 18.48
3/24/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/25/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
3/26/2021 24.0 Miles @ 0.56 13.44
3/29/2021 Miles 24.0 Miles @ 0.56 13.44
3/30/2021 Miles 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
3/31/2021 Miles 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
4/1/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
4/2/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
4/5/2021 Miles 30.0 Miles @ 0.56 16.80
4/6/2021 Miles 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
4/13/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
4/14/2021 23.0 Miles @ 0.56 12.88
4/16/2021 11.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.16
4/19/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/20/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/20/2021 6.0 Miles @ 0.56 3.36
4/21/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/21/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/22/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
4/22/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
4/23/2021 9.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.04
4/23/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
4/26/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40

Page 9

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

106



4/27/2021 Miles 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
4/28/2021 Miles 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
4/29/2021 6.0 Miles @ 0.56 3.36
4/30/2021 42.0 Miles @ 0.56 23.52
4/30/2021 Miles 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
5/3/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/3/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/4/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
5/5/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
5/6/2021 46.0 Miles @ 0.56 25.76
5/6/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/7/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/11/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
5/12/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/13/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/14/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
5/17/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/17/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/18/2021 5.0 Miles @ 0.56 2.80
5/19/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
5/20/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/21/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
5/24/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/25/2021 9.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.04
5/26/2021 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
5/27/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5/28/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/1/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/2/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
6/3/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/4/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/7/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/8/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/9/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
6/10/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/11/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
6/14/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
6/15/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
6/16/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
6/17/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/18/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
6/21/2021 27.0 Miles @ 0.56 15.12
6/22/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/23/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
6/24/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
6/25/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/28/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
6/29/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
6/30/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60

Page 10

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

107



7/6/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/7/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
7/8/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
7/9/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/12/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/13/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
7/15/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
7/16/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/19/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
7/20/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/21/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
7/22/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/23/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
7/26/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/27/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
7/29/2021 Miles 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
7/30/2021 Miles 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/4/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/4/2021 38.0 Miles @ 0.56 21.28
8/5/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
8/9/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/11/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
8/12/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
8/13/2021 14.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.84
8/17/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/18/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/19/2021 35.0 Miles @ 0.56 19.60
8/20/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
8/21/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
8/23/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/24/2021 25.0 Miles @ 0.56 14.00
8/26/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
8/27/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/30/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
8/31/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
8/31/2021 32.0 Miles @ 0.56 17.92

1,125.81

Total this Phase $1,155.97

$97,728.47Total this Project

$97,728.47Total this Report

Page 11

Project 9303720-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

108



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Ms. Sylvia Bethel
Accounting
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

November 18, 2021
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 93421

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Professional Services through October 31, 2021
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 46.75 210.00 9,817.50
Sr. Construction Inspector 147.50 125.00 18,437.50

Totals 194.25 28,255.00
Total Labor 28,255.00

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
    Unit Billing
Large Copy
MILEAGE

277.20

                   $28,532.20Total this Invoice

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
93037 9/14/2021 97,728.47
Total 97,728.47

109



10:04:40 AMInvoice 93421 Dated 11/18/2021Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Thursday, November 18, 2021Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/1/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/2/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/7/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/9/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/14/2021    1.25 210.00  262.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/15/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/16/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/20/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/21/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/22/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/24/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/27/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/29/2021    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 9/30/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/1/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/4/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/7/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/8/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/14/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/15/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/18/2021    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/19/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/20/2021    2.00 210.00  420.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/21/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/26/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/27/2021    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 10/28/2021    2.50 210.00  525.00

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 9/1/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/3/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/7/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/8/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/9/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/10/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 9/13/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/14/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 9/15/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 9/16/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00

Page 2

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

110



Christensen, Frans 9/16/2021 Ovt 1.00 125.00  125.00
Christensen, Frans 9/17/2021 Ovt 3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 9/18/2021 Ovt 3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/20/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 9/21/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/22/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/23/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 9/24/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 9/27/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 9/28/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/29/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 9/30/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 10/1/2021 Ovt 2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 10/4/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/5/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/6/2021    3.00 125.00  375.00
Christensen, Frans 10/8/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 10/9/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/11/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Christensen, Frans 10/12/2021    6.00 125.00  750.00
Christensen, Frans 10/13/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/14/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Rake, Edward 10/15/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/18/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/19/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 10/19/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/20/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Rake, Edward 10/20/2021    4.50 125.00  562.50
Christensen, Frans 10/21/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50
Rake, Edward 10/21/2021    4.00 125.00  500.00
Christensen, Frans 10/22/2021 Ovt 2.00 125.00  250.00
Rake, Edward 10/22/2021    3.50 125.00  437.50
Christensen, Frans 10/23/2021 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 10/25/2021    5.50 125.00  687.50
Christensen, Frans 10/26/2021    2.50 125.00  312.50
Christensen, Frans 10/27/2021    5.00 125.00  625.00
Rake, Edward 10/27/2021    2.00 125.00  250.00
Christensen, Frans 10/28/2021    1.50 125.00  187.50

Totals 194.25 28,255.00
Total Labor 28,255.00

   $28,255.00Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $28,255.00

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

   Unit Billing
9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

Page 3

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

111



9/24/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35
9/27/2021 Large Copy 12.0 Copies @ 0.35 4.20
9/30/2021 Large Copy 1.0 Copy @ 0.35 .35

MILEAGE
9/1/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/3/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/7/2021 13.0 Miles @ 0.56 7.28
9/9/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/10/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/13/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/14/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
9/15/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
9/16/2021 22.0 Miles @ 0.56 12.32
9/17/2021 11.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.16
9/18/2021 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
9/20/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
9/21/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
9/23/2021 19.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.64
9/24/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/27/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/29/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
9/30/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/1/2021 16.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.96
10/4/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
10/5/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/6/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/8/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/9/2021 18.0 Miles @ 0.56 10.08
10/11/2021 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
10/12/2021 15.0 Miles @ 0.56 8.40
10/14/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
10/18/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
10/20/2021 21.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.76
10/22/2021 12.0 Miles @ 0.56 6.72
10/23/2021 8.0 Miles @ 0.56 4.48
10/25/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20
10/26/2021 20.0 Miles @ 0.56 11.20

277.20

Total this Phase $277.20

$28,532.20Total this Project

$28,532.20Total this Report

Page 4

Project 9342120-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

112



1 

 

REQUISITION NO._11___ 

 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 

2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 

December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 11 

 

(B) Name of Payee: BEEP, Inc. 

 

(C) Amount Payable: $11,000.00 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

 

 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021 

Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____ 

 

OR 

 

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working 

Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the 

amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition, 

together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not 

exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____ 

 

 

AND 

 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition 

and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as 

applicable.   

 

 

 

[Include if applicable] 

 

113



2 

 

Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 

payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 

and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 

modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

 
 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

 

 

By:    

 Responsible Officer 

 

Date:____________________________________ 

 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

 

The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  

(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the 

portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii) 

the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof. 

 

The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 

property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 

part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 

improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 

value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 

plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 

required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 

currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 

installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 

have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 

under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 

that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 

which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 

agreement.  

 

[Include as applicable] 

 

The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 

TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 

for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 

the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

114



3 

 

 

 

 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

 

 

By:    

Name:    

Title:   

Date:  

 

 

115



BEEP. Inc.
13485 Veterans Way
#110
Orlando, FL 32827
321-348-6879

INVOICE

Invoice #: 406

Invoice Date: 12/31/21

Amount Due: $7,200.00

Bill To:

Tradition Community Development
District No. 1, c/o Special District
Services, Inc.
2501 Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
United States

Due Date Terms P.O. Number

01/30/22 Net 30 SOW #TR–20210809

Item Description Quantity Price Amount

AV1003-NRR Commissioning Revenue - Route Analysis 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

SW1000-MRR Commissioning Revenue - Route Validation 1 $3,200.00 $3,200.00

Bank Information for ACH Payment:
M&T Bank
1350 I Street NW, Suite 500
Washington, DC 20005
Phone: 202-434-7048
Routing #: 052000113
Account #: 9862190775
Account Name: Beep, Inc.
Checking account (0775)

Subtotal: $7,200.00
Sales Tax: $0.00

Total: $7,200.00
Payments: $0.00

Amount Due: $7,200.00

To pay online, go to https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1

116

https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1


BEEP. Inc.
13485 Veterans Way
#110
Orlando, FL 32827
321-348-6879

INVOICE

Invoice #: 414

Invoice Date: 12/31/21

Amount Due: $3,800.00

Bill To:

Tradition Community Development
District No. 1, c/o Special District
Services, Inc.
2501 Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
United States

 

Due Date Terms P.O. Number

01/30/22 Net 30 SOW #TR–20210809

 
 
 

Item Description Quantity Price Amount

AV1003-NRR Commissioning Revenue - 3-D Mapping 1 $3,800.00 $3,800.00
 

 
Bank Information for ACH Payment:
M&T Bank
1350 I Street NW, Suite 500
Washington, DC 20005
Phone: 202-434-7048
Routing #: 052000113
Account #: 9862190775
Account Name: Beep, Inc.
Checking account (0775)

Subtotal: $3,800.00
Sales Tax: $0.00

Total: $3,800.00
Payments: $0.00

Amount Due: $3,800.00

 
 
To pay online, go to https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1

117

https://app01.us.bill.com/p/beepinc1


 

 
C&T Project No.: 19-085.TR1.023 

January 14, 2022 
 
VIA: Email to: bsakuma@sdsinc.org 
  

B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. 
District Manager 
Special District Services, Inc. 
Tradition Management Offices 
10807 SW Tradition Square 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34987 
 
RE: Tradition  / Southern Grove Community Development District 

ITB #2020-04 Continuing Services Agreement for  
Miscellaneous Construction Activities 
Recommendation for Award 

 
Dear Mr. Sakuma: 
 
Invitations to Bid were sent to 13 contractors and we received two bid responses (Felix 
Associations of Florida, Inc. and Armadillo Earth Works LLC).   Culpepper & Terpening, Inc 
has reviewed both bid responses and found them responsive to the Invitation to Bid.  A copy 
of the bids is attached. 
 
We recommend entering into continuing service agreements with both firms.  The cost for line 
items left blank on the bid form would need to be negotiated prior to award of particular tasks.   
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (772) 464- 3537 ext. 
222 or via email at KCranford@CT-Eng.com . 
 
Sincerely, 
CULPEPPER & TERPENING, INC. 
Tradition CDD Engineer 
 
 
 
Kelly Cranford, P.E., Env. SP Senior Project Engineer 
 

118



1/14/2022

1 of 10

1 Stormwater, New Installation and Replacements

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

1.01
Culvert - Corrugated Poly Pipe

24" (Air trained)
LF 100 lf

1.02
Culvert - Corrugated Poly Pipe

30"  (Air trained)
LF 100 lf

1.03
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

24"
LF 300 lf

1.04
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

30"
LF 100 lf

1.05
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

36"
LF 100 lf

1.06
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete

Pipe42"
LF 100 lf

1.07
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

48"
LF 500 lf

1.08
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

54"
LF 100 lf

1.09
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

60"
LF 300 lf

1.10
Culvert - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

72"
LF 300 lf

1.11 Culvert - HDPE Pipe 24" LF 300 lf

1.12 Culvert - HDPE Pipe 30" LF 300 lf

1.13 Culvert - HDPE Pipe 36" LF 300 lf

1.14 Culvert - HDPE Pipe42" LF 100 lf

1.15 Culvert - HDPE Pipe 48" LF 300 lf

1.16 Culvert – HDPE Pipe 54" LF 100 lf

1.17 Culvert - HDPE Pipe 60" LF 100 lf

1.18 Culvert - CMP Pipe 24" LF 300 lf

1.19 Culvert - CMP  Pipe 30" LF 300 lf

1.20 Culvert - CMP Pipe 36" LF 300 lf

1.21 Culvert - CMP Pipe42" LF 300 lf

1.22 Culvert - CMP Pipe 48" LF 300 lf

1.23 Culvert – CMP Pipe 54" LF 100 lf

1.24 Culvert - CMP Pipe 60" LF 100 lf

1.25
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type C - 10' 
Deep or Less

EA 10 ea

1.26
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type C- More 

than 10' Deep
EA 10 ea

1.27
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type C - 10' 
Deep or Less (Alt Bottom)

EA 5 ea

TRADITION / SOUHERN GROVE CDD - ITB 2020-04 BID TAB

Fill in gray cells (unit price) only.  Leave blank if you do not want to bid on line item.

119



1/14/2022

2 of 10

1.28
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type C - More 

than 10' Deep (Alt Bottom)
EA 5 ea

1.29
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type D - 10' 

Deep or Less
EA 2 ea

1.30
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type D - More 

than 10' Deep
EA 2 ea

1.31
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type E - 10' 

Deep or Less
EA 5 ea

1.32
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type E - More 

than 10' Deep
EA 5 ea

1.33
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type H - 10' 

Deep or Less
EA 1 ea

1.34
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type H - More 

than 10' Deep
EA 1 ea

1.35
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type H - 10' 

Deep or Less (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.36
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type H - More 

than 10' Deep (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.37
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type J - 10' 

Deep or Less
EA 1 ea

1.38
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type J - More 

than 10' Deep
EA 1 ea

1.39
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type J – 10’   

Deep or Less (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.40
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type J - More 

than 10' Deep (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.41
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type K - 10' 

Deep or Less
EA 1 ea

1.42
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type K-  More 

than 10' Deep
EA 1 ea

1.43
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type K - 10' 

Deep or Less (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.44
Ditch Bottom Inlet Type K - More 

than 10' Deep (Alt Bottom)
EA 1 ea

1.45
Endwall 24" or Equivalent - All 

Materials
EA 1 ea

1.46
Endwall 30" or Equivalent - All 

Materials
EA 1 ea

1.47
Endwall 36" or Equivalent - All 

Materials
EA 1 ea

1.48
Endwall 42" or Equivalent - All 

Materials
EA 1 ea

1.49
Mitered End Section 15" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.50
Mitered End Section 18" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.51
Mitered End Section 48" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.52
Mitered End Section 54" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.53
Mitered End Section 60" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.54
Mitered  End Section 66" or  

Equivalent - AU Materials
EA 1 ea

120



1/14/2022

3 of 10

1.55
Mitered End Section 72" or 

Equivalent - All Materials
EA 1 ea

1.56 Yard Drains (per FDOT Index 282) EA 1 ea

1.57
Yard Drain (18” x 18”, plastic) w/ 

20 lf 10” PVC pipe
EA 10 ea

1.58 Rip Rap Rubble - Includes Fabric & 
Bedding Stone (must meet FDOT, 

USDA, NRCS and  other entity 

standards) - FDOT Certified

TN 1.0 tons

1.59 Rip Rap Rubble - Includes Fabric

& Bedding Stone (must meet

FOOT, USDA, NRCS and other

entity standards) - Not FDOT

Certified

TN 1.0 tons

1.60
Structure/ Inlet Connection to

Existing
EA 2 ea

1.61 Concrete Collars - 30" or less EA 1 ea

1.62
Concrete Collars - 36" or greater EA 2 ea

1.63 Miscellaneous Concrete Removal CY 10 cy

1.64 Underwater Inspection - Video HR 8.0 hrs

1.65 Sediment Removal – Pipes and

Structures
CY 10 cy

1.66 Slip Line Pipe, 60” LF 100 lf

1.67 Trash Guard Installation on 

Existing Control Structure, 4 ft x 6 

ft, FDOT standard

EA 2 ea

1.68 Baffle Installation on Existing 

Control Structure, 4 ft diameter, 

trash grate on top, gasket against 

structure

EA 2 ea

1.69 Modification of bleeder in existing 

concrete structure, not accessible 

by land

EA 2 ea

1.70 Inspection of existing concrete 

structure, not accessible by land
EA 2 ea

1.71 Refurbish Sheet Pile Weir 

(Sandblast & Protective Coating)
SF 1.0 sf

1.72
Refurbish Sheet Pile Weir (Steel

Plate Repair)
SF 1.0 sf

1.73

Cleaning & Sealing Concrete Cap

(Includes Siloxane Penetrant

Sealer)

LS 1

1.74 Dredging, up to 12 ft deep CY 10 cy

1.75
Replace existing flat yard drain

grate w/ domed grate, 12” x 12”
EA 5 ea

Category 1, Standard Total $0 

Category 1, Weighted Average #DIV/0!

Category 1, Emergency Total $0 

121



1/14/2022

5 of 10

2 Pavement and Sidewalk Repair

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

2.01 Asphalt Type 9.5 Superpave (per 

FDOT Standards)- 1.5'' thick 

includes stripping, to be placed by 

hand for less than 25 SY per 

location - Less than 2 ton

SY 15 sy

2.02 Asphalt Type 9.5 Superpave {per 

FDOT Standards) - 1.5" thick 

includes stripping, to be p!aced by 

paver for more than 25 SY per 

location - More than 2 ton

SY 100 sy

2.03 Curb - Type "D" - includes end 

section (per FDOT Standards)
LF 50 lf

2.04 Curb - Type "F" - includes end 

section (per FDOT Standards)
LF 50 lf

2.05 Curb - Type "Drop Curb" - includes 

end section (per FDOT Standards) LF 50 lf

2.06 Optional Base (Coquina Rock per 

FOOT Standards) - 12" thick typ. - 

Optional base group 9"  or 11"

SY 50 sy

2.07 Optional Base (Asphalt per FOOT 

Standards) - 611  thick typ. - Optional 

base group 9" or 11"

SY 50 sy

2.08 Flowable Fill CY 20 cy

2.09 Sidewalk - 411  Thick 0-50 ft in 

length (per FDOT Standards) 

Includes Curb Ramps

SY 100 sy

2.10 Sidewalk - 411  Thick 51-100 ft in 

length (per FDOT Standards) 

Includes Curb Ramps

SY 100 sy

2.11 Sidewalk - 6" Thick 0-50 ft in length 

(per FDOT Standards) includes 

Driveway Repair/Replacement and 

Curb Ramps

SY 100 sy

2.12 Sidewalk - 611  Thick  51  - 100  ft  in 

length (per FDOT Standards) 

includes Driveway 

Repair/Replacement and Curb 

Ramps

SY 100 sy

2.13 Cast in Place Detectable Warning 

Surface
EA 5 ea

2.14 Hand  Rails (per  FDOT  Index 

860)
LF 40 lf

2.15 Curb Removal LF 50 lf

2.16 Pavement and Base Removal SY 20 sy

2.17 Paver Brick Driveway - Remove & 

Re-Install
SY 30 sy

122



1/14/2022

6 of 10

2.18 Sign Installation, CDD standard, 

single post
EA 5 ea

2.19 Sign Relocation, single post EA 5 ea

2.20 Thermoplastic - 6" Solid White 

(Edge Line)
LF 200 lf

2.21 Thermoplastic - 12" Solid White 

(Crosswalks)
LF 80 lf

2.22 Thermoplastic  - 24" Solid White 

(Stop Bars)
LF 48 lf

2.23 Thermoplastic - 6" Solid Yellow 

(Edge Line)
LF 200 lf

2.24 Thermoplastic - 6" Double Solid 

Yellow
LF 200 lf

2.25 Thermoplastic - 6" (10' - 30') Skip 

Yellow
LF 100 lf

2.26 Sidewalk Leveling, grinding LF 300 lf

2.27 Root barrier installation LF 100 lf

2.28 Sidewalk Overlay SY 200 sy

2.29 Sidewalk Leveling, Horizontal 

Cutting 
LF 100 lf

2.30 Sidewalk crack repair EA 100 ea

Category 2, Standard Total $0 

Category 2, Weighted Average #DIV/0!

Category 2, Emergency Total $0 

Catergory 2, Emergency Avg #DIV/0!

123



1/14/2022

7 of 10

3

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

3.01 Exercise Valves, less than 10” 

diameter
EA 20 ea

3.02 Exercise Valves, 12” to 18” 

diameter
EA 10 ea

3.03 Exercise Valves, 24” to 30” EA 2 ea

3.04 Valve Replacement, less than 10” EA 5 ea

3.05 Valve Replacement, 12” to 18” EA 5 ea

3.06 Valve Replacement,  24” to 30” EA 2 ea

3.07 Install concrete pad and medallion 

around existing valve box
EA 10 ea

3.08 Pipe leak repair, less than 10” 

diameter
LF 60 lf

3.09 Pipe leak repair, 12” to 18” LF 60 lf

3.10 Pipe leak repair, 24” to 30” LF 40 lf

3.11 Pressure Test HR 8.0 hrs

Category 3, Standard Total $0 

Category 3, Weighted Average #DIV/0!

Category 3, Emergency Total $0 

Catergory 3, Emergency Avg #DIV/0!

Irrigation Facility and Distribution System

124



1/14/2022

8 of 10

4

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

4.01 Embankment/ Fill - Material from

CDD Site
CY 80 cy

4.02 Embankment/ Fill - Material

Supplied by Contractor 
CY 80 cy

4.03 Sod - Bahia - includes watering for

first 30 days
SY 100 sy

4.04 Sod - Floratam - includes watering SY 20 sy

4.05 Excavation & Embankment CY 120 cy

4.06 Utility Box Adjustment EA 10 ea

Category 4, Standard Total $0 

Category 4, Weighted Average #DIV/0!

Category 4, Emergency Total $0 

Catergory 4, Emergency Avg #DIV/0!

General Site Work and Landscaping

125



1/14/2022

9 of 10

5

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

5.01 Conduit F&I, Underground LF 1,000 lf

5.02 Pull and Junction Box, F&I EA 5 ea

5.03 LED Street Light Cobra Assembly, 

F&I 
EA 2 ea

5.04 Street Light, replace bulb EA 12 ea

5.05 Street Light, remove and replace 

with new LED Cobra Head 

Assembly, F&I

EA 3 ea

5.06 LED Shield F&I EA 3 ea

5.07 Conventional Photo Cell – Remove 

and Replace
EA 12 ea

5.08 Existing Street Light Assembly, 

Remove
EA 2 ea

5.09 Reconnaissance and/or Damage 

Assessment
HR 4.0 hrs

5.10 Photometric Survey HR 4.0 hrs

Category 5, Standard Total $0 

Category 5, Weighted Average #DIV/0!

Category 5, Emergency Total $0 

Catergory 5, Emergency Avg #DIV/0!

Electrical

126



1/14/2022

10 of 10

6

Bid Item

FDOT Item 

Ref. # Description Units

Quantity for 

Bid 

Compairiso

n

Unit Price 

Standard

Unit Price 

Emergency 

Response

6.01 Emergency Mobilization / 

Demobilization, in addition to 

normal mobilization fee

LS 4
$1,000.00 /lf $1,500.00 /lf

6.02 Maintenance of Traffic - Sidewalk, 

includes permitting through City LS 4

6.03 Maintenance of Traffic - Lane 

Closure, includes permitting 

through City

LS 2

6.04 Maintenance of Traffic - Road 

Closure, includes permitting 

through City

LS 2

6.05 6 Man Crew - Includes Supervisor HR 12.0 hrs $325.00 /hr $450.00 /hr

6.06 Additional Equipment Operator HR 3.0 hrs $47.00 /hr $70.00 /hr

6.07 Additional Laborer HR 3.0 hrs $29.00 /hr $43.00 /hr

6.08 Back Hoe {Rubber Tire) HR 4.0 hrs $55.00 /hr $55.00 /hr

6.09 Dump Truck (10 CY or More) HR 2.0 hrs $75.00 /hr $90.00 /hr

6.10 Front End Loader HR 4.0 hrs $60.00 /hr $60.00 /hr

6.11 Hydraulic Excavator (Gradal1) HR 1.0 hrs $120.00 /hr $120.00 /hr

6.12 Hydraulic Excavator (Track Hoe) HR 1.0 hrs $94.00 /hr $94.00 /hr

6.13 Skid Steer Loader HR 1.0 hrs $60.00 /hr $60.00 /hr

6.14 Fence Removal & Relocation of 

Existing - Chain Link, 4 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.15 Fence Removal & Relocation of 

Existing – Wooden, 6 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.16 Fence Removal & Relocation of  

Existing – Vinyl, 6 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.17 Fence Removal & Replacement 

with New- Chain Link, 4 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.18 Fence Removal & Replacement 

with New – Wooden, 6 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.19 Fence Removal & Replacement 

with New – Vinyl, 6 ft tall
LF 20 lf

6.20 Arrow Board – Advanced Warning 

Panel
DAY 2 days $10.00 /day $15.00 /day

6.21 Message Sign – Trailer Mounted DAY 2 days $20.00 /day $30.00 /day

Category 5, Standard Total $9,072 

Category 5, Weighted Average $756 

Category 5, Emergency Total $12,743 

Catergory 5, Emergency Avg $1,062 

Additional Items

127



PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT TO 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

 

[Paar Drive (West) Water Mains—2021 CI Project] 

 

THIS PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT is made FROM Pulte Home Company, LLC, a 

Michigan limited liability company (“Pulte”), TO Southern Grove Community Development 

District No. 5, a community development district organized and existing in accordance with 

Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“District No. 5”), acting in accordance with the Second Amended 

and Restated District Development Interlocal Agreement dated as of July 9, 2013, and recorded 

in Official Records Book 3539, Pages 672-713, of the Public Records of St. Lucie County, Flori-

da, as amended (“District Interlocal Agreement”), for itself and under delegated authority from 

each of the “Other Districts” (as defined in the District Interlocal Agreement), WITH THE 

CONSENT AND CONCURRENCE OF Pipeline Utilities Incorporated, a Florida corporation 

(“Pipeline”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. District No. 5 has entered into a Master Trust Indenture (“Master Indenture”) dat-

ed December 17, 2014, with U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (“Trustee”), to secure 

the issuance from time to time of its “Bonds” in one or more “Series” (both as defined in the 

Master Indenture).  District No. 5 and the Trustee have also entered into the Seventh Supple-

mental Trust Indenture supplementing the Master Indenture (“Seventh Supplemental Indenture”) 

dated as of June 1, 2021, providing for issuance by the Issuer of its Special Assessment Bonds, 

Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure) (“2021 Bonds”), the proceeds of which are to be ap-

plied, together with other legally available funds of the Issuer, to pay, among other matters, all or 

a portion of the Costs of the 2021 CI Project (defined below). 

 

B. The “2021 CI Project” means the construction, acquisition, equipping, and/or im-

provement of all or a portion of the public infrastructure improvements and facilities comprising 

Community Infrastructure described in the 2021 Supplemental Engineer’s Report (as defined in 

the Seventh Supplemental Indenture), as the same may be modified, amended, or supplemented.  

The 2021 CI Project, in turn, includes construction and installation of potable water mains within 

Paar Drive (West) (as described in Section 3 of the Supplemental Engineer’s Report) (“Paar 

Drive (West) Water Mains”). 

 

C. By that certain Improvement Acquisition Agreement—2021 CI Project, dated as 

of June 30, 2021 (“Improvement Acquisition Agreement”), Mattamy Palm Beach LLC, a Dela-

ware limited liability company (“Mattamy”), for itself and its successors and assigns with respect 

to the 2021 Assessment Area (as defined in the Improvement Acquisition Agreement) has agreed 

to secure the construction and conveyance to District No. 5 or other appropriate unit of local 

government of major components of the 2021 Project, including construction and conveyance of 

the Paar Drive (West) Water Mains.  Pulte is a successor in interest to Mattamy with respect to 

the 2021 Assessment Area. 

 

128



D. By that certain Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement dated March 29, 2021, 

between Pulte and Pipeline as “Contractor” (“Contractor Agreement”), Pulte has contracted with 

the Contractor for construction of certain infrastructure projects, including projects within the 

2021 Assessment Area (each a “Project”), subject to Pulte issuing to the Contractor a work order 

for each such Project (“Work Order”). 

 

E. Pulte has issued to the Contractor, and the Contractor has accepted, Work Order 

No. 6266PIP012022, dated _____________, 2022, for a Project consisting of construction and 

installation of most or all of the Paar Drive (West) Water Mains (“Work Order No. 

6266PIP012022”). 

 

F. Pulte has requested that District No. 5 accept partial assignment of the Contractor 

Agreement, solely with respect to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 for 

construction and installation of most or all of the Paar Drive (West) Water Mains, and District 

No. 5 has agreed to accept such partial assignment subject to the terms and conditions as set forth 

in its acceptance of this Partial Assignment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and other consideration 

contained herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated herein 

by reference. 

 

2. Partial Assignment of Contractor Agreement.  Pulte, for itself and its succes-

sors and assigns, hereby (a) assigns to District No. 5, its successors and assigns, all right, title, 

and interest in and to the Contractor Agreement solely with respect to the Project described in 

Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 for construction and installation of most or all of the Paar Drive 

(West) Water Mains, which partial assignment shall be effective as of the date set forth below, 

(b) agrees to all terms and conditions of the acceptance of this Partial Assignment by District No. 

5, as set forth below, and (c) agrees to cooperate with District No. 5 to effect the meaning and 

intent of this Partial Assignment, and to execute such further instruments as may be reasonably 

required to give full force to, and to implement the terms and conditions of, this Partial Assign-

ment.  Copies of the Contractor Agreement and Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 are attached as 

a composite exhibit to this Partial Assignment.  Upon performance by District No. 5 of all obli-

gations required of Pulte under the Contractor Agreement and Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, 

District No. 5 shall be entitled to all rights and interests thereunder in the same manner and with 

the same effect as if District No. 5 had originally been named as a party to such Contractor 

Agreement, solely with respect to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022. 

 

 3. Effective Date.  This Partial Assignment shall become effective upon the last date 

of execution by or on behalf of (a) Pulte, granting such Partial Assignment and agreeing to all 

terms and conditions of acceptance by District No. 5, (b) District No. 5, accepting the Partial As-

signment subject to specified terms and conditions, and (c) Pipeline, acknowledging its consent 

to and concurrence with the Partial Assignment and agreeing to all terms and conditions of ac-

ceptance by District No. 5. 

 

129



DATED this ___ day of _____________________, 2022. 

 

Witnesses      PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC 

 

 

       By:        

Print Name:       Print Name:       

 Title:   

 

       

Print Name:       

 

 

130



ACCEPTANCE OF PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT 
 

Southern Grove Community Development District No. 5, for itself and its successors 

and assigns, hereby accepts the foregoing Partial Assignment from Pulte Home Company, LLC 

of all right, title, and interest in and to the Contractor Agreement with Pipeline Utilities Incorpo-

rated, solely with respect to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 for con-

struction and installation of most or all of the Paar Drive (West) Water Mains, subject to the fol-

lowing terms and conditions: 

 

1. Limit of Obligation.  The total obligation of District No. 5 to pay Pipeline under 

the Contractor Agreement and Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 is limited to the funds available 

from proceeds of the Series 2021 Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Seventh Sup-

plemental Indenture. 

 

2. Payments.  Each payment to Pipeline under the Contractor Agreement as related 

to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 is subject to all requisition and other 

obligations and limitations set forth in both (a) the Seventh Supplemental Indenture for the Series 

2021 Bonds and (b) the Improvement Acquisition Agreement. 

 

3. Residual Obligation.  Pulte shall remain obligated under the Contractor Agree-

ment and Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 for any and all amounts that (a) may become due to 

Pipeline for any reason and (b) either (i) exceed funds available from proceeds of the Series 2021 

Bonds or (ii) do not qualify for payment under the requisition and other obligations and limita-

tions set forth in Seventh Supplemental Indenture or the Improvement Acquisition Agreement. 

 

4. Revisions to Contractor Agreement and Work Order No. 6266PIP012022.  The 

Contractor Agreement, as related to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, 

shall be subject to the following supplemental provisions and modifications: 

 

(a) Payments.  All amounts due shall be payable (i) as provided in the Local 

Government Prompt Payment Act, Part VII of Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, and (ii) in 

full compliance with all requisition and other obligations and limitations set forth in both 

Seventh Supplemental Indenture for the Series 2021 Bonds and the Improvement Acqui-

sition Agreement. 

 

(b) Sovereign Immunity.  Notwithstanding any other provision, District No. 5, 

as successor to Pulte under the Contractor Agreement as related to the Project described 

in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, intends to avail itself of the benefits of Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes, and of other statutes and common law governing sovereign im-

munity.  In no event will the liability of District No. 5 exceed the sum of $200,000 per 

person or $300,000 per occurrence.  Nothing in the Contractor Agreement or Work Order 

No. 6266PIP012022 shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allow-

ing any claim that would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity 

or by operation of law.  Nothing in the Contractor Agreement or Work Order No. 

6266PIP012022 shall be construed as consent by an agency or political subdivision of the 

State of Florida to be sued by third parties in any manner arising out of any contract. 

131



 

(c) Public Records. 

 

(i) Pipeline understands and agrees that all documents of any kind 

whatsoever provided to District No. 5 or received by Pipeline in connection with 

the Contractor Agreement as related to the Project described in Work Order No. 

6266PIP012022 may be public records and, accordingly, Pipeline agrees to com-

ply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records.  Pipe-

line shall allow public access to all documents and other materials subject to the 

provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received in conjunction 

with the Contractor Agreement as related to the Project described in Work Order 

No. 6266PIP012022. 

 

(ii) Notwithstanding any other term of the Contractor Agreement or 

Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, the parties recognize that District No. 5 is sub-

ject to the provisions of Florida’s Public Records Law, as codified in Chapter 119, 

Florida Statutes.  If District No. 5 is served with a request, whether pursuant to the 

requirements of applicable law, a judicial or governmental request, requirement, 

order, or otherwise, to disclose information that Pipeline has identified as confi-

dential, District No. 5 will promptly notify Pipeline in order to provide it with suf-

ficient time to object to such request and to pursue a court order protecting the 

disclosure of such information, which objection and pursuit shall be at Pipeline’s 

sole cost and expense.  Pipeline shall notify District No. 5, in writing, of its intent 

to seek protection of the information within ten (10) days of receipt of District 

No. 5’s notification.  Pipeline’s failure to notify District No. 5 of its intent to seek 

protection shall authorize the disclosure of the requested information and shall au-

thorize District No. 5 to comply with the disclosure request.  If Pipeline notifies 

District No. 5 of its intent to seek a court order protecting the disclosure of the in-

formation, then District No. 5 will take reasonable steps to cooperate with Pipe-

line in contesting such request, requirement, or order and in otherwise protecting 

Pipeline’s rights prior to disclosure.  Should Pipeline not disclose the requested 

information or cause any delay in disclosure resulting in the levying of penalties, 

fees, or costs, Pipeline shall defend, indemnify, and hold District No. 5 harmless 

from and against any and all fees and costs, including attorneys’ fees, that are in-

curred or taxed against District No. 5 as a result of the non-disclosure or delay. 

 

(d) Verification of Employment Status.  Pipeline shall bear full responsibility 

for verifying the employment status, under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 

1986, of all persons Pipeline employs in performing its obligations under the Contractor 

Agreement as related to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022.  In 

furtherance of this requirement, Pipeline (i) shall register with and use the United States 

Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility 

of all new employees hired by Pipeline during the term of the Contractor Agreement as 

related to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, and (ii) if Pipeline 

enters into a contract with a subcontractor during the term of the Contractor Agreement 

as related to the Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022, (A) obtain from 

132



the subcontractor an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract 

with, or subcontract with an “unauthorized alien,” as that term is defined in Section 

448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes, and (B) maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration 

of the Contractor Agreement as related to the Project described in Work Order No. 

6266PIP012022. 

 

(e) Notices.  All notices due to District No. 5 under the Contractor Agreement 

or Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 as a result of this Partial Assignment shall be ad-

dressed and delivered to District No. 5 as follows: 

 

Southern Grove Community Development District No. 5 

c/o Special District Services, Inc. 

10807 S.W. Tradition Square 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 

Attention: District Manager 

 

(f) Conflicting Provisions.  In the event of a conflict between the terms and 

conditions set forth in the Contractor Agreement or Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 and 

the supplemental provisions and modifications as set forth in this Acceptance of Partial 

Assignment, the terms and conditions of these supplemental provisions and modifications 

shall govern. 

 

DATED this ____ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 

ATTEST:      SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

 

 

       By:       

Secretary/Assistant Secretary       Frank Covelli 

       Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

*     *     * 

133



CONSENT AND CONCURRENCE OF CONTRACTOR 

 

Pipeline Utilities Incorporated, a Florida corporation, does hereby consent to and con-

cur with the foregoing Partial Assignment by Pulte Home Company, LLC, to Southern Grove 

Community Development District No. 5 of the Contractor Agreement, solely with respect to the 

Project described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022 for construction and installation of most or 

all of the Paar Drive (West) Water Mains, and agrees to all terms and conditions of acceptance of 

such Partial Assignment by District No. 5 as set forth above, including but not limited to the 

supplemental provisions and modifications to the Contractor Agreement as related to the Project 

described in Work Order No. 6266PIP012022. 

 

 DATED this ____ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 

Witnesses PIPELINE UTILITIES INCORPO-

RATED 

 

 

 

       By:        

Print Name:       Print Name:       

 Title:   

 

       

Print Name:       

 

 

*     *     * 

134



COMPOSITE EXHIBIT TO PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT AND WORK ORDER NO. 6266PIP012022 

135



WORK ORDER 
to 

Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement 
 

Pulte Market/Division: South East Florida                                                                             

Pulte’s Project Representative: Garrett Dinsmore 
Contractor and Representative: Pipeline Utilities 
Type of Trade: Pipeline 
Master Land Trade Contractor 
Agreement "Effective Date": 03-29-21 

Work Order Number: 6266PIP012022 
Work Order Commencement Date: Upon Returned Signed Work Order 
Retainage held (% and Draw/Final): 10% 
Project & Phase: Del Webb  – Ph5A PAAR Drive 
LDA Number: 410626601 
Account Category: 10494 

 
This Work Order is issued pursuant to the Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement dated as of the Effective Date 
indicated above between Pulte and Contractor.  Contractor accepts this Work Order and agrees to perform the Work 
described in Schedule A attached hereto for the above-referenced Project for the Work Price set forth in Schedule B 
attached hereto. Pulte agrees to pay Contractor the Work Price subject to the terms and conditions contained herein 
and in the Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement. This Work Order covers the completion of the Work (including 
without limitation the provision of all necessary labor and supply of all Materials) described herein and in the 
schedules, exhibits and documents attached hereto for the above-referenced Project. 
 
Contractor acknowledges that the prices set forth herein include all applicable sales tax, duties, labor, delivery, 
equipment, handling, bonding, royalty fees and license fees.  Prices are effective on or after the date of Pulte’s 
execution of this Work Order. 
 
Prices specified herein shall remain fixed until otherwise agreed in writing by a Pulte authorized representative. Price 
changes shall not become effective unless and until a Change Order to this Work Order is executed by an authorized 
representative of Pulte and Contractor. 
 
Invoices for non-contracted items must be supported by a purchase order or field Work Order executed by a Pulte 
authorized representative. 
 
The documents listed below are incorporated as part of this Work Order:  Per proposal dated 01/14/22: 
DWT 5A – PAAR Drive 16” water main extension  $700,983.75 

 
 

Total: $700,983.75 
 
  

136



Each party signing this Work Order has read the above-referenced Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement, the 
additional provisions contained herein and the Schedules described above and attached hereto, and accepts and agrees 
to be bound thereby.  Contractor acknowledges having received a copy of the Master Land Trade Contractor 
Agreement and all schedules and exhibits to this Work Order prior to execution. 
 
 
Contractor –  Pipeline Utilities 

 
Pulte Home Company, LLC, successor by conversion 
of Pulte Home Corporation. 
 
 

Signed:   
 

Signed:  
 

Print 
Name: 

 
 
 

Print 
Name: 

 
Garrett Dinsmore 

 
Title:  

 
 

 
Title: 

  
Director Land Development 

 
Date: 

  
Date: 

 

 
        
        
        
 
                                                                                           Signed:  ______________________________________ 
 
       Print           Patrick Gonzalez 
                                                                                            Name:   __                                  ___________________  
        
       Title: __    VP Land Development___________________  
 
       Date: _________________________________________ 
 
 

137



To: Contact:Pulte Group Garrett Dinsmore

DEL WEBB 5A - PAAR DRIVEProject Name: Bid Number: 2

Fax:Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Address: 4400 PGA Blvd, Suite 700 Phone: (561) 206-1458

Project Location: Del Webb 5A, Port St Lucie, FL Bid Date: 1/14/2022

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem DescriptionItem # Estimated Quantity

1000 1.00 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00MOBILIZATION & SUPERVISION

1005 1.00 LS $13,000.00 $13,000.00SURVEY, LAYOUT AND AS-BUILTS

1006 1.00 LS $3,350.00 $3,350.00DENSITY TESTING

1017 3,701.00 LF $126.00 $466,326.00WATER MAIN -16" C-900

1036 3,701.00 LF $3.00 $11,103.00WATER  PRESSURE TEST

1040 4.00 EACH $950.00 $3,800.00WATER MAIN SAMPLE POINTS

1070 1.00 EACH $29,750.00 $29,750.00WATER MAIN FILL & FLUSH - 4"

1088 6.00 EACH $8,165.00 $48,990.00WATER MAIN 16" GATE VALVE WITH BOX

1108 8.00 EACH $6,235.00 $49,880.00FIRE HYDRANT

1115 1.00 EACH $2,150.00 $2,150.00WATER MAIN 2" BLOWOFF

9005 7,500.00 LF $1.10 $8,250.00SILT FENCE

9010 1.00 LS $13,300.00 $13,300.00GRIND/CLEAR/DISPOSE APPROX 3,700 LF X 20 LF
AREA OF EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN PAAR DRIVE
ROW

9050 3,701.00 LF $9.75 $36,084.75GRADE & SOD

Total Bid Price: $700,983.75

Notes:

• This proposal is based on plans and specifications prepared by KIMLEY-HORN, entitled "DEL WEBB PH. 5A - PAAR DRIVE", consisting of (30) sheets,
with latest revision dated 8/17/2021. Our bid proposal is based on meeting the plan requirements. We accept no responsibility for the plans or
specifications complying with all necessary codes and regulations.

• Bid Proposal is good for 10 days only, and can be extended only at the discretion of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.
• Material prices are good for 10 days only. Please note, due to current market volatility, material prices may escalate between bid date and project

start date. Any increase will be documented and change ordered to the contract.
• Performance, Payment, or Maintenance Bonds are not included.
• Engineering is not included.
• Permits (including dewatering, Right-of-Way, etc.) and associated fees are not included.
• Any removal and / or restoration of existing asphalt, rock base, concrete, irrigation, fencing, grassing/landscaping, driveways, curbing, sidewalk,

etc., is by others.
• Our prices are based on mobilizing one time and performing all work in a continuous operation. Should any item or items be deleted, prices quoted

are subject to revision. Should customer's scheduling dictate remobilization, a reasonable fee will be added per occurrence.
• All silt fencing, floating turbidity barriers, erosion control, and costs associated with the implementation of Best Management Practices (NPDES) are

by others.
• All Maintenance Of Traffic (MOT) is by others, including, but not limited to, design, set-up, removal, maintenance and temporary striping. All signs,

devices, barrier wall, etc. are by others.
• We have not included any sheeting or shoring. Our prices are based on meeting O.S.H.A. trench standards through proper sloping.
• Allowance for utility conflicts and/or conflict boxes are not included.
• Costs associated with engineering investigation of existing utilities are not included.
• Coordination, relocation and/or removal of existing utilities is by others.
• Removal and disposal of surplus excavation or construction debris is not included, nor is the removal and disposal of any and all hazardous

materials encountered.

1/14/2022 1:37:07 PM Page 1 of 2

138



• We will set drainage and sewer structure tops one time to proposed grade +/- .10'. Any further adjusting of grade, or repairing will be extra.
• After our work has been installed, backfilled and compacted, we will rough grade impacted area to plus or minus 1' of previous grade. Any final

grading necessary to be by others.
• After our work has been installed and inspected by Engineer's inspector and deemed to be acceptable, any damage by others and/or infiltration of

debris in system is not the responsibility of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.  All corrective expense necessary to be paid by others.
• We have not included rock excavation and/or excavation of unsuitable sub-surface material, i.e. muck, etc.
• We have not included bedding rock should existing subsurface conditions warrant its' use.
• We have not included cleaning out existing drainage system should that be necessary.
• Our proposal does not include pumping down, cleaning out or TV/Laser Profile inspection of the proposed drainage system after installation. This

work, if required can be performed on a cost plus / equipment rental basis.
• If an agent and / or attorney are employed by Pipeline Utilities Inc. for collection of any delinquent payment, Customer agrees to pay in addition to

the service charge all fees for the service of such agent and / or attorney (including but not limited to expenses, regardless of whether or not suit

be brought). This quotation and agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Florida without regard to principles of conflicts of laws.

Venue of all proceedings shall be in Palm Beach County Florida, and Customer waives whatever rights it may have in the selection of venue and

hereby consents to jurisdiction.
• Pipeline Utilities Inc. utilizes Florida Statute 713, known as the "Construction Lien Law". Please be aware that the statute provides for a 90-day

period from last work performed in which to file a claim of lien. If payments are not made in accordance with contractual terms, unless agreed to

otherwise, then our remedy is to file a lien. This can especially become pertinent when we have achieved substantial completion, yet final

completion may be more than 90 days away. Any payment, including retainage, must be made prior to the 90-day period expiring.
• Engineering is not included.
• All video taping of construction site is by others.
• All irrigation work, temporary or permanent is by others.
• All temporary pavement restoration is by others.
• All temporary facilities (office, power, restroom, etc.) are by others.
• Tree protection is by others.
• After our work has been installed and inspected by Engineer's inspector and deemed to be acceptable, any damage by others and/or infiltration of

debris in system is not the responsibility of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.  All corrective expense necessary to be paid by others.
• Does not include road, sidewalk or curb.  To be done by others.
• We have not included any item unless it is specifically stated in our proposal.
• Pipelines one year warranty begins when each system is put into service for its intended purpose, or we have achieved a conditional final,

whichever comes first.

Payment Terms:

Terms of payment: Pipeline Utilities, Inc. will submit invoices on the last day of the month, to be paid by the 20th of the following month.

ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Pipeline Utilities Inc.

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Austin Tyo

(561) 842-8833 x402   austin@pipelineutilities.com

1/14/2022 1:37:07 PM Page 2 of 2

139



To: Contact:Pulte Group Garrett Dinsmore

DEL WEBB 5A - PAAR DRIVEProject Name: Bid Number: 2

Fax:Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Address: 4400 PGA Blvd, Suite 700 Phone: (561) 206-1458

Project Location: Del Webb 5A, Port St Lucie, FL Bid Date: 1/14/2022

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem DescriptionItem # Estimated Quantity

1000 1.00 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00MOBILIZATION & SUPERVISION

1005 1.00 LS $13,000.00 $13,000.00SURVEY, LAYOUT AND AS-BUILTS

1006 1.00 LS $3,350.00 $3,350.00DENSITY TESTING

1017 3,701.00 LF $126.00 $466,326.00WATER MAIN -16" C-900

1036 3,701.00 LF $3.00 $11,103.00WATER  PRESSURE TEST

1040 4.00 EACH $950.00 $3,800.00WATER MAIN SAMPLE POINTS

1070 1.00 EACH $29,750.00 $29,750.00WATER MAIN FILL & FLUSH - 4"

1088 6.00 EACH $8,165.00 $48,990.00WATER MAIN 16" GATE VALVE WITH BOX

1108 8.00 EACH $6,235.00 $49,880.00FIRE HYDRANT

1115 1.00 EACH $2,150.00 $2,150.00WATER MAIN 2" BLOWOFF

9005 7,500.00 LF $1.10 $8,250.00SILT FENCE

9010 1.00 LS $13,300.00 $13,300.00GRIND/CLEAR/DISPOSE APPROX 3,700 LF X 20 LF
AREA OF EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN PAAR DRIVE
ROW

9050 3,701.00 LF $9.75 $36,084.75GRADE & SOD

Total Bid Price: $700,983.75

Notes:

• This proposal is based on plans and specifications prepared by KIMLEY-HORN, entitled "DEL WEBB PH. 5A - PAAR DRIVE", consisting of (30) sheets,
with latest revision dated 8/17/2021. Our bid proposal is based on meeting the plan requirements. We accept no responsibility for the plans or
specifications complying with all necessary codes and regulations.

• Bid Proposal is good for 10 days only, and can be extended only at the discretion of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.
• Material prices are good for 10 days only. Please note, due to current market volatility, material prices may escalate between bid date and project

start date. Any increase will be documented and change ordered to the contract.
• Performance, Payment, or Maintenance Bonds are not included.
• Engineering is not included.
• Permits (including dewatering, Right-of-Way, etc.) and associated fees are not included.
• Any removal and / or restoration of existing asphalt, rock base, concrete, irrigation, fencing, grassing/landscaping, driveways, curbing, sidewalk,

etc., is by others.
• Our prices are based on mobilizing one time and performing all work in a continuous operation. Should any item or items be deleted, prices quoted

are subject to revision. Should customer's scheduling dictate remobilization, a reasonable fee will be added per occurrence.
• All silt fencing, floating turbidity barriers, erosion control, and costs associated with the implementation of Best Management Practices (NPDES) are

by others.
• All Maintenance Of Traffic (MOT) is by others, including, but not limited to, design, set-up, removal, maintenance and temporary striping. All signs,

devices, barrier wall, etc. are by others.
• We have not included any sheeting or shoring. Our prices are based on meeting O.S.H.A. trench standards through proper sloping.
• Allowance for utility conflicts and/or conflict boxes are not included.
• Costs associated with engineering investigation of existing utilities are not included.
• Coordination, relocation and/or removal of existing utilities is by others.
• Removal and disposal of surplus excavation or construction debris is not included, nor is the removal and disposal of any and all hazardous

materials encountered.

1/14/2022 1:37:07 PM Page 1 of 2

140



• We will set drainage and sewer structure tops one time to proposed grade +/- .10'. Any further adjusting of grade, or repairing will be extra.
• After our work has been installed, backfilled and compacted, we will rough grade impacted area to plus or minus 1' of previous grade. Any final

grading necessary to be by others.
• After our work has been installed and inspected by Engineer's inspector and deemed to be acceptable, any damage by others and/or infiltration of

debris in system is not the responsibility of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.  All corrective expense necessary to be paid by others.
• We have not included rock excavation and/or excavation of unsuitable sub-surface material, i.e. muck, etc.
• We have not included bedding rock should existing subsurface conditions warrant its' use.
• We have not included cleaning out existing drainage system should that be necessary.
• Our proposal does not include pumping down, cleaning out or TV/Laser Profile inspection of the proposed drainage system after installation. This

work, if required can be performed on a cost plus / equipment rental basis.
• If an agent and / or attorney are employed by Pipeline Utilities Inc. for collection of any delinquent payment, Customer agrees to pay in addition to

the service charge all fees for the service of such agent and / or attorney (including but not limited to expenses, regardless of whether or not suit

be brought). This quotation and agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Florida without regard to principles of conflicts of laws.

Venue of all proceedings shall be in Palm Beach County Florida, and Customer waives whatever rights it may have in the selection of venue and

hereby consents to jurisdiction.
• Pipeline Utilities Inc. utilizes Florida Statute 713, known as the "Construction Lien Law". Please be aware that the statute provides for a 90-day

period from last work performed in which to file a claim of lien. If payments are not made in accordance with contractual terms, unless agreed to

otherwise, then our remedy is to file a lien. This can especially become pertinent when we have achieved substantial completion, yet final

completion may be more than 90 days away. Any payment, including retainage, must be made prior to the 90-day period expiring.
• Engineering is not included.
• All video taping of construction site is by others.
• All irrigation work, temporary or permanent is by others.
• All temporary pavement restoration is by others.
• All temporary facilities (office, power, restroom, etc.) are by others.
• Tree protection is by others.
• After our work has been installed and inspected by Engineer's inspector and deemed to be acceptable, any damage by others and/or infiltration of

debris in system is not the responsibility of Pipeline Utilities, Inc.  All corrective expense necessary to be paid by others.
• Does not include road, sidewalk or curb.  To be done by others.
• We have not included any item unless it is specifically stated in our proposal.
• Pipelines one year warranty begins when each system is put into service for its intended purpose, or we have achieved a conditional final,

whichever comes first.

Payment Terms:

Terms of payment: Pipeline Utilities, Inc. will submit invoices on the last day of the month, to be paid by the 20th of the following month.

ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Pipeline Utilities Inc.

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Austin Tyo

(561) 842-8833 x402   austin@pipelineutilities.com

1/14/2022 1:37:07 PM Page 2 of 2

141



  
 

1 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

Master Land Trade Contractor Agreement 

Effective Date:  

Company  Full Legal Company Name: Pulte Home Company, LLC 

Division(s): SEFL - 1070 

Address:  4400 PGA Blvd., Suite 700 Phone:  561-206-1458 

City:  Palm Beach Gardens  

State:  Florida Zip:  33410 
Email of Company Contact: 
Patrick.Gonzalez@Pulte.com 

Authorized Representative:  Patrick Gonzalez Cell Phone:  n/a 

Contractor Full Legal Company Name: 

Vendor Number (if assigned by Pulte): 

Contractor License No.: 

Employer I.D. No.: 

Address: Phone: 

City:  

State: Zip: Email of Contractor Contact: 

Authorized Representative:  Cell Phone: 

 

THIS MASTER LAND TRADE CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (“MLTA”) is by and between Company and its 
Affiliates engaged in residential homebuilding activities in the Division’s market area (collectively, “Pulte”) and 
Contractor, and is effective on the date set forth above. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

“Affiliate” means any person or entity that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or 
is controlled by, or is under common control with a party. As used in this definition “control” (including, with correlative 
meanings, “controlled by” and “under common control with”) shall mean possession, directly or indirectly, of power to 
direct or cause the direction of management or policies (whether through ownership of securities or other ownership interest, 
by contract or otherwise).  

“Agreement” means: (a) this MLTA; (b) Work Orders; (c) exhibits to this MLTA; and (d) any amendments to this 
Agreement.  

“Applicable Laws” means all applicable local, state and federal ordinances, laws, rules and regulations, including 
building codes, safety laws, FHA/VA requirements, occupational safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary 
of Labor under OSHA, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, any other federal 
or state labor or employment law, and environmental and natural resource laws, rules and regulations, including ordinances 
and policies. 

“Authorized Representative” means the individual designated by each party to be principal point of accountability 
for coordinating and managing that party’s obligations under this Agreement.  

“Change” means a modification, alteration or deviation in the Work, or additional services not described in the 
applicable Work Order. 

Pipeline Utilities, Inc.

CUC1225702

59 - 1684417

3610 Fiscal Ct

Riviera Beach
Florida   33404

Gary Ducote, VP

(561) 842-8833

(561) 239-4475

 gary@pipelineutilities.com

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

142



  
 

2 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

“Claim” or “Claims” means any and all claims (including personal injury, bodily injury, death or property 
damage), demands, suits, actions, proceedings, citations, fines, penalties, obligations, damages, losses, liabilities, liens, 
awards, judgments, costs or expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs, expert witness fees and costs and other expenses 
of any litigation, mediation, arbitration, judicial reference or other legal proceeding of any kind incurred as a result of such 
claims or in enforcing the indemnity obligations set forth in this Agreement), of every kind or nature, whether based on tort, 
contract, or equitable principles. 

“Construction Schedule” means the schedule for a Project. 

“Contractor’s Agents” means suppliers, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen, engineers, agents, consultants and 
other persons from which Contractor purchases or contracts for labor and Materials required to perform the Work and any 
other entity or person under the direction of Contractor. 

“Costs” means all direct and indirect costs, fees, damages, fines, penalties, and all other expenses incurred or paid 
by Pulte in connection with the Work or this Agreement, including costs of Materials, labor costs, equipment costs, 
production stoppage costs, and legal fees and expenses.  

 “Force Majeure Event” shall mean any delay caused by any condition beyond the reasonable control of either 
Pulte or Contractor, such as an act of God; flood or other severe weather conditions; fire or other casualty; delay caused by 
any governmental authority unrelated to any act of failure to act by either Pulte or Contractor; any act of terrorism or 
sabotage; and/or a civil riot. Any strike or other labor difficulties shall not be considered a Force Majeure Event for the 
purposes of this Agreement if such labor difficulties are caused by the action or inaction of Contractor. 

“Indemnitees” means Pulte and its members, managers, shareholders, subsidiaries and Affiliates, and the officers, 
directors, shareholders, insurers, representatives, agents, employees, successors and assigns of all such parties.  

“Liens” shall refer to any and all mechanics’ liens, materialmens’ liens, construction liens, stop notice or bond 
claims or any attachments, levies, garnishments, or suits. 

“Materials” means any and all materials and supplies included with or used in connection with Work which may 
be designated by Pulte in the Work Order or any Specifications for a Project. 

“NPDES Permit(s)” means a permit obtained by Pulte under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(“NPDES”) for a Project. 

“Project” means a Pulte community or any other project designated by Pulte. 

“Specifications” means all plans, reports, drawings, sketches, renderings, maps, specifications, option lists and 
other related documents in connection with any Project, including specific trade scopes of work, job-site specifications, 
Pulte Construction Standards, working drawings and all revisions thereto made throughout the progress of the Project. 

 “Stormwater Applicable Laws” means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended, and all 
federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and policies relating to stormwater pollutants, sedimentation 
control and erosion control. 

 “SWPPP” means an erosion, sedimentation, and stormwater pollution prevention plan prepared by Pulte for a 
Project to comply with the NPDES, and other requirements, in order to control pollutant, erosion, sediment, and 
stormwater discharges and to prevent certain non-stormwater discharges. 

 “Warranty Period” shall be the period of time beginning on the date of Contractor’s commencement of the Work 
and continuing for the longer of: (a) one year after the date following the completion and final acceptance of the entire 
Project; (b) one year after the dedication to a governmental entity, if applicable; or (c) such longer period as may be provided 
under Applicable Law. 

 “Waste” means waste material, spoils, dirt, mud, scrap, debris, trash, excess Materials and rubbish. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

143



  
 

3 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

“Work” means the construction and services required by or reasonably inferred from this Agreement, whether 
completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor and Materials provided or to be provided by Contractor to 
fulfill Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of a Project. Touchup work, punch list work 
and minor patching are considered a part of the Work. 

“Work Order” means Pulte’s request and authorization for Contractor to perform Work with respect to a Project 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and may include any combination of: (a) a purchase order, 
release, Schedule A or other request for Work; (b) job initiation order or notice to proceed; (c) Specifications; (d) the 
Construction Schedule; and (e) any applicable Change. Work Orders may be in written or electronic format, and may be 
provided by or through any media, platform or mode of communication selected by Pulte. 

“Work Price” means the agreed upon price for Work set forth in the applicable Work Order and may include a 
schedule of prices, values, or labor and/or Materials rates or other documents specifying the amounts Pulte will pay 
Contractor for the Work. Contractor and Pulte intend that payment of the Work Price will compensate Contractor for all 
Work described in a Work Order and required thereby and by this Agreement, including all necessary labor, Materials and 
any applicable taxes required for Pulte to use and build upon the Project jobsite for its intended purpose, excluding only 
those items which are expressly excluded from such Work Price in the applicable Work Order.  

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 Purpose. Pulte and Contractor desire to enter into a business relationship covering Contractor’s provision 
of Work in connection with Projects. This MLTA sets forth the terms under which Pulte may request and Contractor shall 
provide Work. 

2.2 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective on the Effective Date and continue for an initial 
term of 2 years, unless earlier terminated in accordance with its terms. This Agreement shall automatically renew on the 
same terms for consecutive 1 year terms unless either party provides written notice of its intent not to renew this Agreement, 
not less than 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or then-current term. In the event that Contractor elects not to 
renew this Agreement, Contractor nevertheless shall complete all outstanding Work Orders in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement and the applicable Work Orders. 

2.3 Order of Precedence. The provisions of the documents comprising the Agreement shall, to the extent 
possible, be interpreted consistently, and in a manner so as to avoid conflict. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency, the 
following order of precedence shall apply: (i) any amendments to this MLTA; (ii) the terms of this MLTA; (iii) exhibits to 
this MLTA; (iv) the applicable Work Order. 

2.4 Bid Documents. Bid documents are not incorporated into this Agreement. 

2.5 Conflicts and Inconsistency with Other Documents. Any and all terms on any other agreements, 
contracts, proposals, bids, acknowledgements, invoices or other documentation are void to the extent of any conflict or 
inconsistency with this Agreement. 

3. ORDERING PROCESS 

3.1 Specifications. During the term of this Agreement, Pulte may make available Specifications and related 
documents and information to Contractor related to a specific Project and ask Contractor for a bid or proposal for Work. If 
requested by Pulte, Contractor may, at no cost to Pulte, work on the initial development of the Specifications for a specific 
Project, provided that such assistance by Contractor shall not entitle Contractor to any Work Orders. 

3.2 Jobsite Inspection. In connection with Contractor's bid or proposal for Work, Contractor shall: (a) inspect 
the applicable Project jobsite, if necessary, available and accessible, and review the Specifications for the Project in 
formulating and preparing its bid or proposal; (b) identify all proposed Contractor’s Agents; (c) provide all information 
requested by Pulte, including detailed take-offs, specifications and literature for Materials, quantities, unit costs, labor costs 
and hours, submittals, shop drawings, insurance costs and other overhead; and (d) investigate and confirm that its proposed 
Work complies with all Applicable Laws and immediately notify Pulte in writing of any portion of the Work that does not 
so comply.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

144



  
 

4 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

3.3 Ownership. Contractor agrees that all Specifications, including copies thereof, are the property of Pulte 
and are not to be used on other work or given to other parties, except as required for the Work. Pulte shall be deemed the 
author and owner of the Specifications and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including 
copyright. All Specifications and all copies thereof shall be returned to Pulte upon completion of the Work.  

3.4 Work Orders. During the term of this Agreement, Pulte may issue Work Orders to Contractor for Work. 
Items of Work omitted from Work Orders or Specifications that are clearly inferable from the information presented therein 
shall be provided and performed by Contractor and shall be deemed to be part of the Work at no additional cost to Pulte. 
Contractor shall immediately notify Pulte of any discrepancy, error, conflict or omission discovered by Contractor in the 
Work Orders or Specifications at any time. 

3.5 Changes to Work Orders. If Pulte requests a Change that increases the cost of the Work, Contractor shall 
provide to Pulte, within a reasonable time, not to exceed 3 business days, a written report stating the estimated cost of such 
Change and estimated time to incorporate the Change into the Work and the impact upon the Work Price. Any mutually 
agreed Change that increases the Work Price for the applicable Work Order shall be set forth in writing as an amendment 
to the applicable Work Order. Any such Change shall contain a detailed description of the additional Work, a completion 
date and the amount(s) and schedule of payment of the Work Price authorized for such Change. Pulte shall have the right 
to request a Change that does not increase the cost of the Work. Pulte shall have the right to delete any portion of the Work 
described in a Work Order by giving at least 1 business day written notice to Contractor. The Work Price will be reduced 
by an amount equal to the price of the deleted Work determined by applying the same cost structure for Materials, labor, 
overhead and profit utilized in calculating the original Work Price.  

3.6 No Guarantee of Work. This is a non-exclusive agreement and nothing herein constitutes a promise, 
guarantee, representation or commitment of any minimum or specified number of opportunities or that any Work Orders 
will be issued to Contractor. Contractor is not obligated to accept any Work Orders from Pulte, and Contractor shall accept 
or decline any Work Order, in writing, within 2 business days after issuance of the proposed Work Order by Pulte. 
Contractor’s commencement of any portion of the Work under a proposed Work Order shall be deemed Contractor’s 
acceptance of such Work Order. 

4. INITIATION OF WORK 

4.1 Notice to Proceed. Unless the Work Order specifies otherwise, Contractor shall have no authority to 
commence Work at any location of the Project until Contractor has received notice to proceed from Pulte. 

4.2 Permits. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Work Order, Contractor shall, at its sole cost, obtain 
all permits required for Contractor to perform the Work, including general land development and construction permits. 

4.3 Licensing. Contractor must be properly authorized to do business in every jurisdiction where it shall 
perform the Work, and properly licensed to perform the Work by all necessary governmental authorities. Contractor shall 
maintain current copies of all licenses and certificates of competency required by all jurisdictions where Contractor shall 
perform Work and provide current copies of these documents to Pulte within 2 business days of request by Pulte. 

4.4 Jobsite Inspection. Contractor, prior to commencing Work on the Project, or at any subsequent time as 
reasonably necessary, shall:  

(a) inspect the then-current state of the Project jobsite and review the latest version of the 
Specifications and Construction Schedules for the Project; 

(b) ascertain the jobsite conditions to be encountered in the performance of the Work; 

(c) report any discovered damage to Pulte; 

(d) verify that all Work, storage and access areas and surfaces related to or adjoining the Work are 
satisfactory for the commencement of the Work; and 

(e) notify Pulte of any discrepancy, error, conflict or omission discovered by Contractor regarding the 
Project, Specifications or Work Order. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

145



  
 

5 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

4.5 Acceptance of Jobsite. The commencement of the Work by Contractor shall be deemed as Contractor’s 
acceptance of the jobsite and all access and storage areas. 

5. PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS OF WORK 

5.1 Performance of Work. Contractor shall perform all Work described in the applicable Work Order in 
accordance with this Agreement.  

5.2 Instructions to Contractor. From time to time Pulte may issue instructions to Contractor identifying the 
Work to be performed at each specific location within the Project and establishing a Construction Schedule for that portion 
of the Work. Pulte may also direct that certain parts of the Work be prosecuted in preference to others in order to maintain 
the progress of the Project. 

5.3 Review. Contractor shall stay informed regarding all changes in the jobsite, Specifications and Construction 
Schedules throughout the course of the Project. Contractor shall review the Construction Schedule daily to verify, prior to 
commencing any Work, any Changes and that the Materials, colors, options, elevations and orientation of the garage on the 
lot are correct.  

5.4 Costs of the Work. Contractor shall furnish, at its own cost and expense, all labor, Materials, tools, 
equipment, facilities, light, appliances, fans, and any water pumping necessary to perform the Work. To the extent not 
otherwise provided, Contractor shall also furnish at its own cost and expense, electricity and heat necessary to perform the 
Work. Contractor shall pay all taxes, royalties and license fees applicable to such items furnished by Contractor and forms 
and methods used by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement. Contractor shall secure and pay for all government 
approvals necessary for the use of such items. Costs to locate and relocate existing utilities as well as all costs associated 
with tying into such existing utilities are included in the Costs of the Work. If Contractor uses Pulte’s equipment or facilities, 
then Contractor shall reimburse Pulte, at a pre-determined rate prior to use thereof.  

5.5 Personnel. Contractor shall have the necessary personnel available to meet the Construction Schedule and 
to compensate for weather delays. 

5.6 Project Meetings. Contractor shall attend all Project meetings called by Pulte.  

5.7 Project Manager. At all times when the Work is in progress, Contractor shall have a qualified, experienced 
and knowledgeable project manager, superintendent or foreperson, readily available or on the Project jobsite as Contractor’s 
representative for the Project who is able to communicate in English with Pulte and others on the jobsite and is authorized 
to represent Contractor as to all matters on the Project and to make such monetary and non-monetary decisions on behalf of 
Contractor as may be necessary for the prompt and efficient performance of this Agreement. Prior to the commencement of 
Work, Contractor shall notify Pulte of the identity of Contractor’s representative on the Project jobsite and any replacement 
representative. Pulte may reasonably reject Contractor’s representative and any replacements. 

5.8 Conduct. While at any Pulte facility or a Project jobsite, Contractor, Contractor’s employees and 
Contractor's Agents shall conduct themselves in a professional manner, shall comply with all Project jobsite rules and 
regulations adopted by Pulte, and shall comply with all of Pulte’s reasonable requests regarding personal conduct.  

5.9 Project Rules and Applicable Laws. In connection with all of its activities under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall comply with all rules, programs and processes initiated by Pulte for the Project and all Applicable Laws. 

5.10 Archaeological Sites and Artifacts. If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human 
remains or recognizes the existence of burial markers, archaeological sites or culturally significant artifacts, the Contractor 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect such items or areas and shall notify Pulte. The Contractor shall 
continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by Pulte but shall continue with all other operations that do 
not affect those items or areas.  

5.11 OSHA Compliance. Contractor acknowledges that the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (and 
any and all state and local laws related to occupational health and safety) (the “OSHA Regulations”), all as amended from 
time to time, require, among other things, all contractors and subcontractors to furnish to their workers employment and a 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

146



  
 

6 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

place of employment that is free from recognized hazards. In this regard, Contractor specifically agrees, without limitation 
of its general obligations under Section 5.9, as follows:   

(a) Contractor will fully comply with the OSHA Regulations then in effect during the performance of 
any Work and will cooperate with Pulte and all subcontractors of Pulte in order to assure compliance with the OSHA 
Regulations. 

(b) Contractor accepts full responsibility and liability for the training of its employees as to all 
precautionary measures necessary to protect such employees during both routine and emergency situations on the Project 
jobsite and Contractor shall make available for Pulte’s review all records and logs indicating such training was administered 
by Contractor to its employees. 

(c) Contractor will assist Pulte in complying with the OSHA Regulations, including the preparation 
of a spill prevention, control and countermeasures plan (SPCC). 

(d) Before using any chemicals in its performance of the Work for Pulte or incorporating any chemicals 
into Materials supplied to Pulte or to the Project jobsite, Contractor must give Pulte prior written notice of the existence and 
the possible exposure to such chemicals and deliver a material safety data sheet to Pulte. 

(e) Contractor will fully comply (and will cause its employees and Contractor’s Agents to comply) 
with all Project jobsite rules or regulations, including those that relate to safety, that Pulte may put in place. Even though 
Pulte may put some safety-related rules and regulations in place, Contractor acknowledges that it continues to be responsible 
for the safety of its employees and Contractor’s Agents and that Pulte assumes no responsibility or obligation for their 
safety. 

5.12 OSHA Violations. Pulte has entered into this Agreement with Contractor with the expectation that 
Contractor will perform Work on the Project jobsites fully in compliance with OSHA Regulations. Any failure by Contractor 
to do so could result in potential losses to Pulte (potential liability for injuries, administrative fines or penalties, operational 
costs due to work stoppages, etc.). Because of these potential losses, if Pulte identifies violations of OSHA Regulations or 
of the Project jobsite rules and regulations related to safety by Contractor (or its employees or Contractor’s Agents), 
Contractor shall, in addition to and not in place of any and all other rights and remedies that Pulte may have under this 
Agreement, reimburse Pulte for all Costs. Pulte may offset or back-charge these Costs against amounts that may otherwise 
be due from Pulte to Contractor under this Agreement. Although Pulte has the right to do so, Pulte has no obligation to 
monitor compliance with OSHA Regulations by Contractor (and its employees and Contractor’s Agents). Pulte’s failure to 
assess Costs against Contractor as provided in this Section 5.11 shall in no way waive any of Pulte’s rights and remedies 
available under this Agreement or otherwise. Furthermore, failure to comply with this Section is a default by Contractor, 
giving Pulte the right to exercise any remedies (including termination, penalties and fines) available under this Agreement. 

5.13 Injuries. Contractor shall immediately advise Pulte of any injury to any of Contractor’s employees or 
Contractor’s Agents at the jobsite and will provide Pulte with a written report regarding such injury within 24 hours of such 
injury. 

5.14 Safe and Clean Jobsite. Contractor shall at all times keep all aspects of the Project jobsite, including any 
streets, alleys, sidewalks and storage areas, in a safe condition and free from all Waste generated in connection with the 
Work, and remove all such Waste from the jobsite or deposit it in such locations as Pulte may from time to time designate. 
When practicable, all such Waste shall be compacted before disposal. The interior and exterior of all homes on a Project are 
to be clean at all times to allow Contractor and all other contractors and subcontractors of Pulte to perform their work 
efficiently and safe. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall promptly remove all such Waste and tools from the 
Project jobsite. Contractor shall leave the Project jobsite and adjacent areas thereto in “broom clean” condition at the end 
of each day. Contractor shall also move all excess usable Materials and/or spoils provided to Pulte by Contractor in 
accordance with instructions issued by Pulte. If Contractor fails to clean up as provided herein, Pulte has the right, but not 
the obligation, to do so and Pulte shall be entitled to reimbursement from Contractor for all Costs of such clean up. If a 
dispute arises among Contractor, other contractors and Pulte as to the responsibility for maintaining the Project jobsite and 
the surrounding area free from Waste, Pulte may clean up and Pulte will allocate the Costs among those responsible, as 
reasonably determined by Pulte. Pulte’s allocation of Costs shall be binding on Contractor. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

147



  
 

7 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

5.15 Noise. Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the local jurisdiction within which a Project is 
located relating to construction noise.  

5.16 Work Hours. Unless otherwise specified by Pulte, construction, alteration, or repair activities which are 
authorized by a valid permit shall be allowed only during the hours permitted by the local jurisdiction in which the Project 
is located. On weekends and federal holidays, construction shall be allowed only as permitted by the local jurisdiction and 
any active homeowners’ association rules.  

5.17 Blasting. If blasting activities are required for the Work, Contractor shall conduct the blasting activities in 
compliance with all Applicable Laws. Contractor shall submit blasting plans for review and approval by the local 
jurisdiction prior to commencing any blasting activities.  

5.18 Excavation or Digging. Contractor must verify that there is no conflict with the location of any utilities or 
landscaping prior to any excavation or digging. Contractor shall have all existing underground utilities located prior to 
excavation or digging. Contractor shall perform the Work so as to not damage utility lines and shall follow all applicable 
encroachment standards affecting the utility rights of way and adequately protect its own employees, and those of others 
and Pulte, in performing the Work. 

5.19 Pulte’s Geotechnical Engineer. Pulte will retain a geotechnical engineer (the “Testing Firm”) to provide 
testing for Pulte’s quality assurance. Pulte’s testing does not relieve Contractor of the sole obligation to provide Pulte with 
compaction required, if any, in accordance with the applicable Work Order. Contractor is solely responsible for all repairs 
caused by improper use of soils or compaction and improper stabilizations of subgrades. 

5.20 Placement of Structural Soils. Contractor must schedule the Testing Firm not less than 24, but not more 
than 72, hours prior to performing any structural soils placement and compaction. If the Testing Firm does not appear on 
site to test soils as scheduled, Contractor will do no structural soils placement until Contractor has notified Pulte in writing, 
and Pulte has returned written approval for the Work to continue. If Contractor places structural material without the Testing 
Firm present to approve the structural material placement, Contractor will be responsible for all costs associated with 
obtaining the Testing Firm’s approval. In addition, Contractor will be responsible for all costs for correction of the Work as 
well as any other work which may be affected by the structural soils placement and compaction, including any work 
subsequently placed on the structural soil. 

5.21 Costs of Moving and Transporting Soils. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Work Order, all 
costs of moving and transporting soils necessary to complete the Work are included in the Work Price and Pulte will not be 
required to make any additional payment therefor. 

5.22 Use of Utilities. Contractor shall not use any utilities, except those specifically provided by Pulte. Current 
homeowners’ utilities shall not be used except where approved by homeowner for the purpose of completing warranty work. 

5.23 Coordination of Work. Contractor shall coordinate its Work with Pulte and other contractors and 
subcontractors of Pulte so that Contractor’s performance of its Work will not interfere with or cause problems, defects or 
delays in the work being performed by Pulte and its other contractors and subcontractors. 

5.24 Failure to Prosecute the Work. If Contractor should fail or refuse to prosecute the Work properly and 
diligently or fail to perform any provisions of this Agreement and should any such failure or refusal continue for 48 hours 
after oral or written notice to Contractor, then such failure shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. Such breach shall 
entitle Pulte to immediately terminate this Agreement or the applicable Work Order and remedy the situation with all Costs 
being borne by Contractor. 

5.25 No Damages for Delays. Pulte shall have no liability to Contractor if any other contractor fails to comply 
with its respective Construction Schedule thereby delaying the progress of the Work. Contractor expressly agrees not to 
make, and hereby waives, any and all monetary claims for damages against Pulte caused by any delay for any cause 
whatsoever, even those delays caused by Pulte or those delays for which Pulte may otherwise be liable. Contractor 
acknowledges that an extension of time shall be its sole and exclusive remedy in this regard. Should Contractor be delayed 
in the prosecution of any Work solely by the acts of Pulte or by a Force Majeure Event, the time allowed for completion of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

148



  
 

8 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

the Work shall be extended by the number of days that Contractor has been thus delayed, but no allowance or extension 
shall be made unless a claim therefor is presented in writing to Pulte immediately upon the onset of such delay. 

5.26 Shortage of Labor or Materials. Contractor shall give Pulte immediate written notice if Contractor 
foresees, experiences or is advised of any constraint, shortage or insufficiency in the supply of any Materials, labor or other 
items necessary for Contractor to timely perform its obligations under this Agreement. The giving of such notice shall not 
excuse Contractor from its obligations hereunder. In the event of any such constraint, shortage or insufficiency, Contractor 
shall, at its own cost and expense, use its best efforts to promptly resolve any such constraint, shortage or insufficiency, 
including increasing its forces, working such overtime or expediting the delivery of Materials or other items as may be 
required to bring its Work into compliance with the Construction Schedule. Contractor shall provide Pulte with priority of 
supply and labor over any other customer of Contractor at no additional cost to Pulte. In the event that Contractor is unable 
to remedy a Material shortage under this Section 5.22, Pulte may, at its sole discretion, locate, order and take delivery of 
affected Materials directly from the manufacturer or an alternative supplier and Contractor shall reimburse Pulte for all 
Costs associated therewith. 

5.27 No Changes to the Work. Contractor shall not make any changes in the Work (including additions, 
deletions or substitutions) or perform any additional Work without the prior written consent of Pulte. Contractor will not 
receive any sums in excess of the Work Price or any extension in the Construction Schedule without first obtaining such 
prior written consent of Pulte. Any authorizations for changes in Work, including performance of additional Work, shall be 
subject to the terms of this Agreement and shall be upon such written forms as shall be provided by Pulte to Contractor.  

6. RECEIPT AND PROTECTION OF MATERIALS; PROTECTION OF WORK 

6.1 Acceptance of Materials. Contractor is responsible for accepting or rejecting all Materials. Contractor 
shall reject all Materials that do not conform to the Specifications. Contractor shall not install or use any damaged Materials.  

6.2 Risk of Loss. All Materials delivered to and accepted by Contractor or transported by Contractor to and 
from the Project jobsite shall be at the sole risk and responsibility of Contractor.  

6.3 Protection of Materials and Work. Contractor shall keep, store and maintain all Materials in good order 
and protect all Materials from damage, theft and loss. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the protection of and good 
condition of the Work until final completion thereof. 

6.4 Loss or Damage to Materials and Work. Contractor shall protect the Work and all property adjacent to 
that upon which it is performing Work and the property, work and materials of other contractors and subcontractors from 
injury or damage arising out of the Work. In no event shall Pulte be responsible for loss or damage to the Work (except as 
a direct result of the intentional acts of Pulte), and Contractor shall indemnify and hold Pulte harmless from any such claims.  

6.5 Natural Disasters. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor shall take all precautions 
and actions that may be appropriate, regardless of whether requested by Pulte, to protect Materials and Work during 
predicted natural disasters, such as tornados, hurricanes, flooding, and severe thunderstorms. 

6.6 Damage, Theft, or Vandalism. Contractor is solely responsible for its Materials, tools and equipment lost, 
damaged or stolen at the Project jobsite. Contractor shall be responsible for any defect in the Work or damages, theft or loss 
thereof caused by or resulting from its failure to adequately and properly protect the Work. Contractor shall be fully liable 
and responsible to Pulte for all Costs associated with any damage, loss, theft, or vandalism resulting from Contractor’s 
failure to fully comply with the terms of this Section. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that Pulte owes no duty to protect 
the Work and if Pulte uses the services of any security guard that such services are for Pulte’s exclusive benefit and that 
Contractor shall not rely upon such services. 

7. PRICES AND PAYMENT 

7.1 Work Price. Contractor shall perform the Work for the Work Price.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

149



  
 

9 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

7.2 Progress Payments. Progress payments for the Work specified in the applicable Work Order shall be paid 
only after the following conditions have been met, which progress payments shall reflect adjustment in retainage, if any, 
under Section 7.7 for such Work: 

(a) Pulte agrees that Contractor has, in fact, performed the percentage or stage of the Work 
(“Applicable Work”) that would trigger a progress payment according to the Work Order; 

(b) The Applicable Work has been performed in accordance with all governmental requirements and, 
if requested, Contractor has provided Pulte with satisfactory evidence of the same; 

(c) Contractor has delivered to Pulte Lien waivers in a form acceptable to Pulte from Contractor and 
from each Contractor Agent and Materials supplier that provided labor, Materials or other services in connection with the 
Applicable Work; 

(d) The payment request and supporting documents comply with Pulte’s requirements; 

(e) Contractor is in compliance with all insurance requirements set forth herein; and 

(f) Contractor has corrected any defective Work in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

7.3 Final Payment. Final payment, including all retainage withheld in accordance with Section 7.7, for the 
Work specified in the applicable Work Order shall be paid only after the following conditions have been met: 

(a) The Work has been fully completed, including all corrections to defective Work, as requested by 
Pulte; 

(b) Pulte has provided final written approval of the Work; 

(c) Contractor has delivered to Pulte final Lien waivers in a form acceptable to Pulte from Contractor 
and from each Contractor Agent and Materials supplier; 

(d) The Work has been performed in accordance with all applicable governmental requirements and 
Contractor has provided Pulte with satisfactory evidence of the same; 

(e) If requested by Pulte, Contractor has provided fully detailed “as built” drawings of its completed 
Work; 

(f) Contractor has provided Pulte with copies of all written warranties and assignments of any 
manufacturer’s warranties from Contractor’s Agents and Materials suppliers as set forth in Section 10.2; 

(g) Contractor has delivered all operating, servicing and maintenance manuals, if any; and 

(h) Contractor has fully performed any other outstanding obligations under the applicable Work Order. 

7.4 Notice of Nonpayment. Contractor agrees to notify Pulte within 5 business days if Contractor has not 
received payment in full within 60 days of payment becoming due as provided above. Failure to so notify all appropriate 
parties will result in Contractor forfeiting money due for such completed Work. 

7.5 No Waiver. Payment under any Work Order is not evidence of performance of Contractor’s obligations 
under this Agreement, either in whole or in part, and payment does not constitute acceptance of defective Work. 

7.6 Contractor’s Acceptance of Final Payment. Contractor’s acceptance of Pulte’s final payment shall be 
conclusive evidence that Pulte has made all payments due and owing with respect to the Work and Contractor shall have no 
further right to request any further payment with respect thereto. 

7.7 Retainage. Subject to Applicable Laws, Pulte may retain up to 10% from amounts owing to Contractor 
under a Work Order. Such retainage may be retained by Pulte as long as permitted by Applicable Laws. If no Applicable 
Laws govern, Pulte may retain the retainage for such period of time during which a Lien or claim of Lien could lawfully be 
filed by anyone related to the applicable Work Order. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

150



  
 

10 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

7.8 Offsets and Backcharges. Contractor agrees that amounts owed under any Work Order are subject to 
withholding, backcharge and offset by Pulte in the event of: (a) Contractor’s breach of this Agreement; (b) any damages 
caused by Contractor; (c) any Liens, Costs or other claims arising out of the Work; (d) any Costs of curing defective Work 
or completing unfinished Work; (e) Contractor’s breach of any other agreement between Contractor and Pulte; (f) claims or 
amounts due to Pulte regardless of whether they arise out of this Agreement; or (g) any other reason for withholding provided 
in this Agreement or under Applicable Laws. If Pulte terminates any Work Order as a result of Contractor’s failure to 
comply with the terms and conditions of the Work Order or this Agreement, then Pulte shall have the right to terminate any 
other agreements between Contractor and Pulte. 

7.9 Effect of Contractor’s Breach. If Contractor breaches this Agreement, Pulte may stop all payments to 
Contractor until such time as Pulte ascertains its Costs resulting from the breach, at which time Pulte is authorized to deduct 
all Costs related thereto from any monies owed Contractor. 

7.10 Disputed Payments. Contractor shall not delay or stop any Work by reason of Pulte’s failure to make any 
payments if the failure is a result of a dispute as to the amount of the payment or whether payment is due. 

8. LIENS; WAIVER OF LIENS 

8.1 No Liens. Contractor shall pay when due, all claims for labor, equipment and Materials furnished to the 
Project as part of the Work, and all claims made by any benefit trust fund pursuant to any collective bargaining agreement 
to which Contractor may be bound, to prevent the filing of any Liens involving the Work, the Project or Contractor. 
Contractor shall within 5 days after notice take whatever action is necessary to terminate the effect of any Liens, including 
filing or recording a release or lien bond. 

8.2 Failure to Remove Liens. Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements of Section 8.1 within a 
period of 5 days after notice from Pulte of any Liens shall entitle Pulte to terminate the applicable Work Order or this 
Agreement or both. In addition, Pulte may use whatever means it may deem best to cause the Liens, together with their 
effect upon the Project or any of Pulte’s property or operations, to be removed, discharged, compromised or dismissed, 
including making payment of the full amount claimed, and the Costs thereof shall become immediately due and payable by 
Contractor to Pulte.  

8.3 Pulte May Withhold Payment to Contractor. If Pulte receives notice of any failure to pay or notice of 
Liens (or intent to Lien) pertaining to Contractor, Contractor's Agents or the Work, Pulte may withhold the payment of any 
monies to which Contractor would otherwise be entitled to receive, until such time that Pulte has reasonable evidence that 
such Liens have been discharged.  

8.4 Direct or Joint Payments. If Contractor fails to pay or discharge when due any monetary obligations of 
any kind or nature whatsoever incurred by Contractor by reason or in the fulfillment of this Agreement, regardless of whether 
Liens have been or may be issued or filed with respect thereto, which monetary obligations in the opinion of Pulte are 
proper, Pulte may pay all or any part of such monetary obligations for Contractor’s account or Pulte may issue payment 
jointly to Contractor and the applicable third party. Pulte has no obligation to make any such direct or joint payment and 
whether it chooses to make any such payment is solely at the discretion of Pulte. Any such payment made by Pulte shall 
constitute a payment to Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor hereby expressly waives and releases any claim against 
or right of recovery from Pulte because of any act or omission of Pulte in making any such payment and nothing herein 
shall be deemed to mean Pulte assumes any liability towards Contractor’s Agents.  

8.5 Payment of Costs. Contractor shall pay to Pulte upon demand all Costs in connection with the discharge 
and release of any Lien. 

8.6 Waiver of Lien Rights. Contractor intends to furnish Work in the construction, repair or replacement of 
improvements upon real property owned or to be owned by Pulte.  

(a) Notwithstanding any alleged breach of this Agreement by Pulte and to the extent not otherwise 
prohibited by Applicable Law, Contractor hereby waives and releases all Liens and rights to claim Liens that Contractor 
may have or hereafter be entitled to have as a result of the performance or furnishing of Work. Contractor waives any right 
to assert and agrees that it will not have such Lien claims against the real property on which the Work is performed or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

151



  
 

11 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

directly against Pulte or Pulte’s homebuyer. Contractor shall not assign any claim for payment or any right to perfect a Lien 
against Work, real property, or the improvements thereon, to any third person. Any such attempted assignment shall be 
invalid and not enforceable and shall be deemed a breach of Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall 
include substantially identical language to this Section 8.6(a) in all subcontracts for Work by which Contractor’s Agents 
shall waive and release all Liens and rights to claim Liens.  

(b) To the extent that Contractor’s waivers of Liens and Lien rights in Section 8.6(a) are unenforceable, 
then, in addition to any notices required by Applicable Law, Contractor shall provide Pulte with written notice at least 10 
business days before placing or filing any Lien against any real property upon which Work is performed.  

9. QUALITY, INSPECTION AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

9.1 Quality of the Work. Contractor shall perform the Work in a good and workmanlike manner, free of 
defects, in compliance with this Agreement, Applicable Laws, and all manufacturer’s recommendations, installation 
guidelines and specifications, and to the satisfaction of Pulte. All Work shall meet or exceed the highest standards of the 
industry for residential construction in the same geographic area. 

9.2 Inspection of the Work. Contractor shall inspect the Work for quality and completion. Unless otherwise 
directed by Pulte, Contractor shall schedule all inspections relative to the Work and shall perform any tests necessary to 
receive inspection approval. Pulte may hire third party inspectors and Contractor shall cooperate with such inspectors and 
make corrective Work they require, at no additional cost to Pulte. 

9.3 Correction of Deficiencies or Defects. Contractor shall promptly correct all Work which Pulte deems 
deficient, defective or nonconforming. Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected Work without any increase 
in the Work Price. Pulte may nullify any previous approval of Work if it subsequently determines that the Work is defective 
or non–compliant with the Work Order. Contractor shall, within 2 business days after receiving notice from Pulte, remove 
all Materials, which Pulte rejects as unsound or improper, and Contractor shall repair or replace all Work rejected at 
Contractor’s sole expense. 

9.4 Pulte’s Rights. If Pulte exercises any of its options, remedies or rights under the terms of this Agreement 
in the event of any material failure of performance or breach by Contractor, Pulte may: (a) use any Materials on the Project 
jobsite, which belong to Contractor, to complete the Work, whether such Work is completed by Pulte or others, and 
Contractor agrees that it shall not remove such Materials from the Project jobsite unless directed in writing by Pulte to do 
so; (b) eject Contractor from the Project jobsite; and (c) enforce any or all of Contractor’s contracts with Contractor’s 
Agents, true and complete copies of which (including all modifications and change orders) shall be provided by Contractor 
immediately upon Pulte’s request. In exercising its rights under Section 9.4(c), Pulte shall only be acting as the authorized 
agent of Contractor and Pulte shall not incur any independent obligation in connection therewith. 

10. WARRANTIES; WARRANTY WORK AND PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

10.1 Materials and Work. Contractor warrants and guarantees that: (a) all Materials, except materials provided 
by Pulte, shall meet or exceed the requirements of this Agreement and all Applicable Laws and shall be new, of good quality 
and free of Liens, security interests, claims or encumbrances; and (b) all Work shall meet or exceed the requirements of all 
Applicable Laws. 

10.2 Warranty. Contractor warrants that the Work shall be and remain in conformity with the Specifications 
and Work Order, and free from defects or flaws for the Warranty Period. Upon Pulte’s acceptance of the Work, Contractor 
shall deliver and transfer to Pulte any and all manufacturer’s warranties for Materials. The warranties and guarantees 
contained herein shall in all cases survive termination of this Agreement and shall apply to both patent and latent defects in 
workmanship and materials. 

10.3 Warranty Work and Performance Standards. If, during the applicable Warranty Period, the Work does 
not comply with the warranties set forth in this Agreement, then Contractor shall promptly repair or replace the Work at 
Contractor’s sole cost and expense, within 48 hours after notice to do so, or within 3 hours after notice in the event of any 
emergency. Pulte shall determine whether an emergency exists, which generally includes those conditions involving the 
risk of harm to persons or property or which make the home not habitable comfortably. Repairs and replacements shall be 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

152



  
 

12 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

made in a diligent first-class manner with as little inconvenience as possible to Pulte and the homeowner. Contractor shall 
clean up thoroughly after repairs are completed. Neither repairs nor replacements shall be deemed to be complete until the 
defect or non-conformity has been permanently corrected. Contractor shall reimburse Pulte (or at Pulte’s direction, the 
homeowner) for any damages to the Project jobsite or any home, for any damages to personal property located on the Project 
jobsite or at any home, and for any reasonable Costs incurred as a result of the inconvenience or loss of use and enjoyment 
of the Project jobsite or any home which is caused by the defect, non-conformity or the repairs or replacements. If Contractor 
fails or refuses to timely fulfill any of its warranty obligations, Pulte may repair or replace the applicable Work and 
Contractor shall reimburse Pulte for all Costs related thereto. 

10.4 Repairs After Expiration of the Warranty. If the Work is determined by Pulte to be defective or 
otherwise non-conforming after the expiration of the Warranty Period but before the expiration of the applicable statute of 
limitations or repose, Contractor shall, upon request from Pulte, repair and replace such Work. Contractor shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to promptly perform such repair and replacement at Contractor’s sole cost and expense. If 
Contractor performs any such repair or replacement after the expiration of the Warranty Period and after the expiration of 
the applicable statute of limitations or repose, Pulte shall compensate Contractor for such repair or replacement activities at 
reasonable market rates. The provisions of this Section shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement or 
completion of the Work. 

10.5 Notice and Opportunity to Repair Statutes. Contractor shall cooperate with Pulte in connection with any 
matters relating to any applicable notice and opportunity to repair statutes. If Contractor fails or refuses to cooperate in that 
process, Pulte will have the right to correct any defective Work and damage caused as a result of such defective work, and 
Contractor shall, upon demand, immediately reimburse Pulte for all Costs incurred responding to such matters and 
performing all such repairs. 

11. GENERAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

11.1 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and Contractor’s Agents shall fully comply with all 
Applicable Laws regarding the environment and natural resources.  

11.2 Storage of Materials. Contractor is solely responsible for the proper use, storage and handling of all 
Materials, including potential pollutants, used in the Work, and for the generation, handling and disposal of all Waste 
resulting from the Work, in full compliance with all Applicable Laws regarding the environment and natural resources. In 
addition, Contractor shall immediately notify Pulte if Contractor or Contractor’s Agents generate more than 100 kilograms 
of hazardous waste in any one month on a Project site. 

11.3 Impacts to Wetlands and Waters. Contractor and Contractor’s Agents shall not (i) cause any unpermitted 
impacts to wetlands, waters, habitats or designated protected areas, or (ii) violate any permits governing such matters or 
issued in connection therewith. 

11.4 Vehicles and Equipment. Contractor and Contractor’s Agents shall minimize any vehicle or equipment 
fueling, washing, maintenance or repair on a Project jobsite and any such activities shall not result in run-off or releases 
onto the ground or off a Project jobsite or into a storm water management or conveyance system. Contractor shall provide 
secondary containment for all petroleum products and potentially hazardous materials stored or used on any jobsite. 

11.5 Remediation. Contractor will take immediate steps, at Contractor’s sole expense, to cause to be remediated 
in full compliance with and to the full extent required by the Applicable Laws, any release or discharge by Contractor of 
any hazardous or other regulated substance on or from a Project jobsite.  

11.6 Failure to Correct Non-Compliance. If Contractor fails to correct any non-compliance with this Section 
after written notice from Pulte, Pulte may, without assuming any liability therefor, correct such non-compliance and charge 
the Costs to Contractor. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

153



  
 

13 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

12. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

12.1 Compliance with Stormwater Applicable Laws. Contractor shall fully comply with all Stormwater 
Applicable Laws, Project NPDES Permit(s), and the Project SWPPP. 

12.2 Contractor’s Representative. Contractor shall designate a Contractor employee representative with 
authority from Contractor to oversee, instruct, and direct Contractor’s employees and Contractor’s Agents regarding 
compliance with the requirements of the Stormwater Applicable Laws, Project NPDES Permit(s), and Project SWPPP. Prior 
to commencing Work, the designated Contractor representative shall contact Pulte’s jobsite stormwater representative to 
request information on stormwater management at the Project. Contractor and Contractor’s Agents shall review prior to 
commencing Work on the jobsite, and shall abide by at all times, (i) all stormwater and jobsite orientation materials and 
direction provided by Pulte to Contractor, and as may be required by the Stormwater Applicable Laws, Project NPDES 
Permit(s), and Project SWPPP, and (ii) file all notifications, plans and forms required by Stormwater Applicable Laws, 
Project NPDES Permit(s), and Project SWPPP. Contractor is responsible for circulating information provided by Pulte 
regarding stormwater management to its employees and Contractor’s Agents who will be working on the Project.  

12.3 Compliance with SWPPP. Contractor shall require Contractor’s Agents to immediately notify Contractor 
and Pulte of any source pollutants that Contractor’s Agents intend to use on the jobsite that are not identified in the Project 
SWPPP, and require that each of Contractor’s Agents on the Project immediately notify Contractor and Pulte of any 
corrections or recommended changes to the Project SWPPP that would reduce or eliminate the discharge of pollutants and/or 
sediments from the jobsite. Further, neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s Agents shall discharge any prohibited non-
stormwater discharges to stormwater systems or from the jobsite. If requested by Pulte, Contractor shall annually or at the 
completion of the Work, certify that the Work was performed in compliance with the requirements of the Stormwater 
Applicable Laws, Project NPDES Permit(s), and Project SWPPP. 

12.4 Best Management Practices. Contractor acknowledges that periodic changes may have to be made to the 
Project SWPPP during the progress of the Work, and Contractor shall at all times comply with, and require that Contractor’s 
Agents at all times comply with, the most current version of the Project SWPPP. Contractor and Contractor’s Agents shall 
use best efforts to comply with the Project SWPPP practices and procedures, including the “best management practices,” 
and Contractor shall implement “best management practices” to control erosion and sedimentation and to prevent the 
discharge of pollutants. Contractor shall ensure that all of Contractor’s and Contractor’s Agent’s personnel are appropriately 
trained in the appropriate “best management practices”, and trained to comply with the Project SWPPP, Project NPDES 
Permit(s), and Stormwater Applicable Laws.  

12.5 Notice of Discharge. Contractor shall immediately notify Pulte if it observes, discovers and/or becomes 
aware of (i) any spill of any hazardous or toxic substance or material or other pollutants on the jobsite, (ii) any discharge of 
any hazardous or toxic substance or material or other pollutants into or on the jobsite which leaves the jobsite or is capable 
of being washed from the jobsite during a rain event, (iii) any failure by any party to comply with the requirements of the 
Project SWPPP, Project NPDES Permit(s), and Stormwater Applicable Laws, and (iv) any damage to or failure of a “best 
management practice” or any other stormwater and erosion and sediment control measure. Contractor shall retain all records 
relating to the Project SWPPP, Project NPDES Permit(s), and Stormwater Applicable Laws, and any and all violations of 
the same, for a period of three (3) years following completion of the Project, or longer as required by applicable law. 

12.6  Pulte’s Right to Remediate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Pulte shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to immediately remedy any violation of Stormwater Applicable Laws, Project NPDES 
Permit(s), and the Project SWPPP for which Contractor is responsible, without the necessity of providing Contractor with 
any notice or right to cure. Should Pulte remedy any such violation, Pulte shall have the right to back-charge Contractor for 
the Costs to remedy the violation. Conversely, Pulte shall have the right, in Pulte’s sole and absolute discretion, to require 
Contractor to reimburse Pulte for the Costs incurred by Pulte to remedy such violation and/or for fines or penalties paid for 
such violation, and unless Contractor reimburses Pulte for such Costs within ten (10) days after receiving Pulte’s written 
request for payment of the same, Contractor will be in default of this Agreement, and Pulte shall have all rights and remedies 
available to Pulte as a result of a Contractor default. Nothing in this Section shall limit or modify in any way Contractor’s 
obligations or Pulte’s rights under other provisions in this Agreement.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

154



  
 

14 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

13. LABOR MATTERS 

13.1 Not Pulte Employees. Contractor acknowledges that (i) Contractor, its agents, its employees, or any 
individual who performs work for or at the request of Contractor is not an employee of Pulte and (ii) Pulte does not govern 
and is not responsible for any aspect of the employment relationship between Contractor and its employees. 

13.2 Contractor’s Employees. Contractor may recruit, interview, select, and hire individuals who, in 
Contractor’s judgment, are best qualified to perform the Work. At Pulte’s request, Contractor shall remove from the Project 
jobsite any employee who violates any Applicable Laws, makes threats or presents a potential danger to others at the Project 
jobsite, or improperly interferes with other work being performed at the Project jobsite, provided that this arrangement shall 
in no way affect the right of Contractor, in its sole discretion, to hire, assign, reassign and/or terminate its employees, 
contractors and subcontractors. In connection with performance of the Work, Contractor shall: 

(a) comply with any and all applicable federal, state and local equal employment opportunity/non-
discrimination/anti-harassment laws and regulations including those precluding discrimination or 
harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, sex, age, national 
origin, disability and/or any other protected class or status required by law; 

(b) calculate, pay, and record wages and overtime of its employees in full compliance with the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, which prescribes standards for wages and overtime pay, and all other Applicable Laws. 
Contractor must seek legal advice and/or contact the U.S Department of Labor at 1-866-4-USA-DOL (1-
866-487-2365) or applicable state governmental entity if it has any questions regarding wage and hour 
compliance; 

(c) calculate and pay all fringe or other benefit payment or contribution, including interest thereon, owed to 
Contractor’s employees or third parties on behalf of Contractor’s employees; 

(d) calculate, pay or withhold all required employment related taxes, including payroll taxes, insurance 
premiums and other government mandated charges for Contractor’s employees; 

(e) maintain personnel, payroll, and timekeeping records for its employees; 

(f) ensure that all employees are properly classified under Applicable Laws and that any individuals retained 
as independent contractors are properly classified as such under Applicable Laws; and 

(g) comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”) and warrant that all employees 
of Contractor used to provide work or services to Pulte were hired in compliance with IRCA and all other 
Applicable Laws concerning the employment and verification of individuals authorized to work in the 
United States (including timely I-9 verification). 

13.3 Labor Harmony. Contractor shall maintain labor harmony on the Project jobsite, and shall not employ any 
persons, means, Materials or equipment which may cause strikes, work stoppages or any disturbances of Contractor’s 
Agents, Pulte or any other contractor or subcontractor on the Project. Contractor shall perform Work with labor that is 
compatible with that of other trades performing work at the Project jobsite, and Contractor shall exercise all due diligence 
to overcome any strike or other labor dispute or action. 

13.4 Eligible to Work Legally in the United States. Contractor is solely responsible for the verification of each 
of its employee’s and Contractor’s Agent’s eligibility to work legally in the United States. Contractor represents and 
warrants that: (a) Contractor’s employees and Contractor’s Agents shall all be eligible to work legally in the United States; 
(b) Contractor will timely obtain, review and retain all documentation required by all Applicable Laws to ensure that each 
of its employees and each of Contractor’s Agents is eligible to work legally in the United States; (c) Contractor shall comply 
with all Applicable Laws and other governmentally required procedures and requirements with respect to work eligibility, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

155



  
 

15 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

including all verifications and affirmation requirements; and (d) Contractor shall not knowingly or negligently hire, use, or 
permit to be hired or used, any person not eligible to work legally in the United States in the performance of the Work.  

13.5 Compliance with Employment Laws. Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor’s compliance 
with all employment laws is very important to Pulte and is a condition to maintaining its relationship with Pulte. Contractor 
must immediately inform Pulte if it is audited or investigated by any government body or any employment related lawsuit 
is filed against it.  

14. RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT 

14.1 Cooperation. Each party shall reasonably cooperate with the other party in connection with its obligations 
under this Agreement. Such cooperation shall include informing the other party of all management decisions that the party 
reasonably expects to have a material effect on the obligations required to be performed by that party under this Agreement. 

14.2 Communication. Contractor shall maintain electronic communications with Pulte via e-mail or the Internet 
and shall establish and maintain such other commercial communication methods and technical systems as Pulte may require 
from time to time. 

14.3 Verification of Performance of Obligations. Contractor shall provide Pulte with all reports, 
documentation and information as Pulte reasonably requests to verify the performance of Contractor’s obligations under 
this Agreement, including full reports of the progress of Work in such detail as may be required by Pulte including any shop 
drawings, as–built drawings and diagrams in the course of preparation, process, fabrication, manufacture, installation or 
treatment of the Work. 

14.4 Conduct of Contractor. Contractor represents and warrants that it: (a) shall perform its obligations and 
deal with Pulte in good faith and with fair dealing; (b) shall conduct its business in a manner which reflects favorably on 
Pulte; (c) shall not engage in any deceptive, misleading, illegal or unethical business practices; (d) has not and shall not, 
directly or indirectly, request, induce, solicit, give or accept any bribe, kickback, illegal payment or excessive gifts or favors 
to or from Pulte or any Pulte employee, or any third party acting on Pulte’s behalf; and (e) has not engaged in and shall not 
engage in any anticompetitive behavior, price fixing or any other unlawful restraints of trade. Contractor shall immediately 
provide written notice to Pulte of any of the foregoing upon Contractor’s becoming aware of the same. 

14.5 Notice of Litigation or Investigation. To the extent permissible under Applicable Law or agreement, 
Contractor shall notify Pulte in writing promptly of: (a) any litigation or arbitration brought against Contractor related to 
the Work; (b) any actions taken or investigations initiated by any governmental agency in connection with the Work; (c) 
any legal actions initiated against Contractor by governmental agencies or individuals regarding any illegal activities, 
including fraud, abuse, false claims or kickbacks; (d) any proceedings by or against Contractor in bankruptcy, insolvency 
of Contractor, any proceedings for appointment of a receiver or trustee or an assignment for the benefit of creditors or any 
other similar event. At Pulte’s request, and to the extent permissible under Applicable Law or agreement, Contractor shall 
provide to Pulte all known details of the nature, circumstances, and disposition of any of the foregoing.  

15. GOALS, CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT AND QUALITY 

15.1 Cooperation. Contractor acknowledges that Pulte’s long-term goals may include: (a) shortening build-
times for the Projects; (b) increasing flexibility; (c) achieving ongoing cost reductions; and (d) achieving specific quality 
goals and continuous quality improvement. Contractor agrees to cooperate with Pulte in working toward achieving these 
goals, which includes the obligations set forth in this Section. At least once each contract year at Pulte’s request, the parties 
shall meet to review Contractor’s competitiveness regarding pricing, quality, technology and services, with a view to 
assuring they remain competitive with other contractors in the marketplace. 

15.2 Improvements in Performance of Work. Contractor understands that Pulte’s selection of Contractor as a 
provider of Work is based in part on Pulte’s belief that Contractor is committed to continuing to improve its performance 
of Work and to find cost savings over the term of this Agreement. Savings may relate to development and implementation 
of manufacturing efficiencies, feature improvements, component purchase price reductions, engineering breakthroughs or 
delivery and distribution enhancements that result in lower cost of Work or operating expenses for Contractor or Pulte. To 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

156



  
 

16 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

this end, Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to continuously improve the performance and quality of 
Work, to assist Pulte in achieving costs savings associated with Work, and to reduce Contractor’s costs of performing Work, 
through increases in efficiency and otherwise. 

15.3 Corrective Action Plan. If Contractor fails to perform Work properly, Contractor shall promptly put into 
place a written corrective action plan, reasonably acceptable to Pulte, designed to ensure that Contractor will perform Work 
properly going forward. 

16. INSPECTIONS AND REVIEWS 

16.1 Review of Books and Records. At Pulte’s request, Contractor shall allow Pulte or its designated 
representatives to review Contractor’s applicable invoices, books and records to the extent necessary to verify Contractor’s 
representations and charges to Pulte and compliance with this Agreement. Contractor shall reasonably cooperate with Pulte 
or its designated representatives in connection with such review. Upon completion of any such review, Pulte and Contractor 
shall review the report together and work in good faith to agree upon any adjustment of charges (including any 
reimbursement of overpayments) resulting from the review. 

16.2 Inspections. Pulte and its agents shall have the right to inspect all Materials, facilities, Project jobsites and 
surrounding areas, to confirm Contractor’s compliance with the requirements of this Agreement, including OSHA 
compliance. No inspection or failure to inspect by or on behalf of Pulte will increase Pulte’s obligations or liabilities nor 
limit Pulte’s rights or Contractor’s obligations. 

17. INDEMNIFICATION  

17.1 Indemnity. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby releases, covenants not to sue, and shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless Indemnitees from and against any and all Claims arising out of, resulting from, or 
relating to: (a) the performance or nonperformance of the Work, (b) defects in the Materials, (c) Contractor's or Contractor's 
Agents' failure to comply with the Stormwater Applicable Laws, NPDES Permit(s), or the Project SWPPP, (d) Contractor’s 
or Contractor’s Agents’ failure to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act, IRCA, or any other Applicable Laws 
concerning labor or employment, or (e) any other breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, any 
promise to indemnify or hold harmless under this Agreement caused in whole or in part by any act, omission, or default of 
an Indemnitee, (i) shall be limited to a maximum liability of $1 million per occurrence, as required under Florida Statute 
725.06(1), and (ii) shall not include claims of, or damages resulting from, gross negligence, or willful, wanton or intentional 
misconduct of the Indemnitees or for statutory violation or punitive damages except and to the extent the statutory violation 
or punitive damages are caused by or result from the acts or omissions of the Contractor or Contractor’s Agents, as required 
under Florida Statute 725.06(1)(c). It is the intent of the parties that all indemnification provisions of the Agreement be 
interpreted so as to be consistent with Florida Statutes 725.06 and to indemnify the Indemnitees to the fullest extent 
permitted by law and this Agreement. The parties agree that each has had full and fair opportunity to consider the limitations 
included in this section and such limitations are commercially reasonable with regard to the Agreement. 

17.2 Statutory Limits Inapplicable. In any and all Claims against any Indemnitee brought by Contractor or 
Contractor’s Agents, the indemnification obligation hereunder shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the 
amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or Contractor’s Agents under workers’ 
or workman’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 

17.3 Indemnification and Defense Obligations. Contractor’s indemnification and defense obligations shall not 
be limited by the amounts or types of insurance that Contractor is required to carry under this Agreement or that Contractor 
does in fact carry. 

17.4 Homeowner Claims. In the event any Indemnitee is required to mediate or arbitrate a Claim with a 
homeowner arising out of or relating to Work, an Indemnitee may, in its sole discretion, require Contractor to participate in 
the mediation and/or arbitration in accordance with the Federal Arbitration Act, and pursuant to the applicable rules of the 
American Arbitration Association as determined by Pulte's contract with the homeowner. Any award rendered by the 
arbitrator may be confirmed, entered and enforced in any court having jurisdiction and Contractor and the Indemnitee(s) 
shall be bound by that decision. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

157



  
 

17 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

17.5 Survival. The provisions of this Section 17 shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement or 
completion of the Work and shall continue until such time it is determined by final judgment that the Claim against 
Indemnitees is fully and finally barred by the statute of limitations. The indemnification obligations shall not be construed 
to negate, abridge or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which otherwise exists in favor of Pulte or 
any Indemnitee.  

18. INSURANCE. Contractor shall carry, with insurance companies rated A- VII or better by A.M. Best Company, 
the following insurance coverage continuously during the life of this Agreement, and thereafter as provided below: 

18.1 Commercial General Liability Coverage. 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL”) coverage shall be on an occurrence form 
containing limits of at least $1,000,000.00 per occurrence/$2,000,000.00 general aggregate/$1,000,000.00 products-
completed operations, protecting against property damage, bodily injury and personal injury claims arising from the 
exposures of:  

(i) Premises or ongoing operations; 

(ii) Products-completed operations, which shall: 

(A) cover materials designed, furnished and/or modified in any way by Contractor; 

(B) have a separate aggregate limit at least equal to the CGL per occurrence limit; and  

(C) be maintained through the longer of the statute of limitations or repose period for 
construction defect and products liability claims in the state where the Work is 
performed. Policies and/or endorsements cannot include any provisions that 
terminate products-completed operations coverage at the end of a policy period or 
limit the coverage in any other way with respect to additional insureds; 

(iii) Independent contractors; 

(iv) Contractual liability; and  

(v) Property damage resulting from explosion, collapse, or underground (x, c, u) exposures (if 
applicable). 

(b) The CGL coverage must be primary. Any of Pulte’s insurance shall be considered excess to all 
primary and excess insurance of Contractor for the purpose of responding to claims. The following wording must be 
included in the Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance: “This insurance is Primary and Non-Contributory.” 

(c) Contractor’s CGL policy includes a waiver of subrogation in favor of PulteGroup, Inc., its 
subsidiaries and affiliates, by referencing and attaching the required endorsement. 

(d) The policy shall not contain exclusions for the Work, including exclusions for residential 
construction, attached product (if applicable), liability that arises from a dispute governed by a notice and opportunity to 
repair statute, or any Contractor's Agent's Work or injuries to its employees or agents (if Contractor subcontracts any portion 
of the Work). For attached product, the following wording must be included in the Description of Operations on the 
Certificate of Insurance: “No exclusionary language or limitations relating to residential construction, condominiums, multi-
family, or multi-unit dwelling.” For detached product, the following wording must be included in the Description of 
Operations on the Certificate of Insurance: “No exclusionary language or limitations relating to residential construction.” 

(e)  PulteGroup, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates, shall be named as additional insureds on the CGL 
policy by having the insurance carrier issue an additional insured endorsement(s) at least as broad as the ISO CG 2010 11/85 
Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or Contractors - Form B endorsement. Such additional insured status under the CGL 
policy shall not be limited by amendatory language to the policy. Further, this endorsement shall: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

158



  
 

18 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

(i) Provide coverage for both premises/ongoing operations and products-completed operations 
to the benefit of the additional insured; and 

(ii) Provide coverage to the full extent of the actual limits of Contractor’s coverage even if 
such actual limits exceed the minimum limits required by this Agreement. 

(f) Owners and Contractors Protective Liability Policies cannot fulfill the requirement for CGL 
coverage under this Agreement. 

(g) In the event that Contractor opts to participate in any alternative general liability insurance program 
offered through Pulte as a means to fulfill the requirement for CGL coverage, Contractor agrees that Pulte may deduct 
premium payments due Contractor under this Agreement. 

(h) In the event that Contractor provides Work for a Project covered by an Owner Controlled Insurance 
Program arranged by Pulte, the CGL requirements are hereby waived for purposes of that Project only. 

18.2 Automobile Liability Coverage. Contractor shall carry automobile liability coverage with a combined 
single limit of $1,000,000 insuring against bodily injury and/or property damage arising out of the operation, maintenance, 
use, loading or unloading of any auto including owned, non-owned, and hired autos. PulteGroup, Inc., its subsidiaries and 
affiliates, shall be named as additional insureds on the automobile liability policy. 

18.3 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage.  

(a) Contractor shall carry workers’ compensation insurance providing statutory benefits imposed by 
applicable state or federal law such that: (1) Pulte shall have no liability to Contractor, its employees or Contractor’s Agents; 
and (2) Contractor shall satisfy all workers’ compensation obligations imposed by state law.  

(b) This policy shall include a documented waiver of subrogation in favor of PulteGroup, Inc., its 
subsidiaries and affiliates (in states where permitted).  

(c) If any of Contractor’s employees or Contractor’s Agents are subject to the rights and obligations 
of the Longshoremen and Harbor Workers Act or any other maritime law or act, the workers’ compensation insurance must 
be broadened to provide additional required coverage. 

(d) For purposes of worker’s compensation coverage, Contractor agrees that Contractor, Contractor’s 
employees and Contractor’s Agents are not employees of Pulte and are therefore not beneficiaries of any Pulte coverage. 

(e) Contractor may satisfy its workers’ compensation obligations by providing documentation of 
current authorization from the appropriate state authorities for the state(s) where the Work is performed indicating that 
Contractor is adequately self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. 

(f) Contractor shall carry employer’s liability coverage with limits of not less than: 

(i) $500,000 Each Accident 

(ii) $500,000 Aggregate Policy Limit for Disease 

(iii) $500,000 Each Employee 

18.4 Pollution Liability Insurance. Contractor shall carry the insurance required under this Section 18.4 if any 
of the Work involves demolition; disturbing or otherwise handling asbestos containing materials, lead based paint, pollutants 
or hazardous or toxic materials; mold remediation or similar environmental scopes of work. 

(a)  Contractor shall carry Pollution Liability insurance (“PL”) coverage with limits of at least 
$5,000,000.00 per occurrence and in the aggregate insuring against losses for Clean-up, Bodily Injury, Property Damage or 
Natural Resource Damage that Contractor becomes liable to pay to a third party, including local, state or federal government, 
for a pollution release, including contaminants associated with asbestos, lead based paint, PCB’s or other pollution 
conditions, arising from Work performed at a Project. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

159



  
 

19 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

(b)  The PL policy shall include coverage for loss due to loading, transporting or unloading of asbestos, 
lead-based paint or other products or hazardous or toxic substance or material performed by or on behalf of Contractor or 
Pulte.  

(c)  If PL coverage is carried on a claims made basis, the policy limits must be at least $5,000,000.00 
per claim and in the aggregate, or limit carried, whichever is greater, and the PL policy must be in effect as of the date of 
commencement of performance of the Work and be maintained for a minimum of 3 years thereafter.  

(d)  PulteGroup, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates, shall be named as additional insureds on the PL 
policy.  

18.5 Umbrella or Excess Coverage. To the extent Contractor carries umbrella or excess insurance above the 
minimum required limits stated in this Agreement, the protection afforded the additional insureds in the umbrella or excess 
liability insurance shall be as broad or broader, than the coverage in the underlying insurance and in accordance with this 
Agreement. Each umbrella or excess liability policy shall specifically state that the insurance provided by Contractor shall 
be considered primary. 

18.6 Deductibles. Contractor shall disclose all applicable policy deductibles and/or self-insured retentions 
(“SIR”) and be liable for all costs within the deductibles and/or SIR. 

18.7 Certificates of Insurance. Prior to commencement of the Work, Contractor shall evidence that such 
insurance is in force by furnishing Pulte with a certificate of insurance, or if requested by Pulte, certified copies of the 
policies. Notwithstanding the non-renewal or termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide renewal certificates 
and endorsements to Pulte for so long as the applicable insurance is required to be maintained pursuant to this Section 18. 
Renewal certificates shall be provided at least 10 days prior to expiration of the policy. The certificate shall evidence the 
requirements of this Agreement and specify that: 

(a) PulteGroup, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates, are additional insureds on the CGL and automobile 
policies, and if applicable the umbrella and/or excess policies, by referencing and attaching the required endorsement;  

(b) The policy does not contain exclusions for the Work and/or for duties performed by Contractor 
pursuant to this Agreement, including residential construction, attached product (if applicable), or liability that arises from 
a dispute governed by a notice and opportunity to repair statute. For attached product, the following wording must be 
included in the Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance: “No exclusionary language or limitations relating 
to residential construction, condominiums, multi-family, or multi-unit dwelling.” For detached product, the following 
wording must be included in the Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance: “No exclusionary language or 
limitations relating to residential construction.” 

(c) Contractor’s coverage is primary and Pulte’s insurance is excess for any Claims. The following 
wording must be included in the Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance: “This insurance is Primary and 
Non-Contributory;”  

(d) Contractor’s CGL policy contains contractual liability coverage; 

(e) Contractor’s workers’ compensation policy includes a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
PulteGroup, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates (in states where permitted), by referencing and attaching the required 
endorsement;  

(f) Contractor’s CGL policy includes a waiver of subrogation in favor of PulteGroup, Inc., its 
subsidiaries and affiliates, by referencing and attaching the required endorsement; and 

(g) Contractor must provide evidence of workers compensation in the states(s) that it operates by either 
listing on the certificate those states listed in item 3.A. of the Information Page of the workers compensation Policy or 
attaching a copy of the Information Page.  

18.8 Contractor’s Agent(s). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

160



  
 

20 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

(a) If Contractor subcontracts any portion of the Work, Contractor shall nevertheless be bound to 
indemnify Indemnitees as provided in this Agreement on behalf of Contractor’s Agent(s). Contractor shall require that 
Contractor’s Agent(s) indemnify Indemnitees as provided in this Agreement and carry insurance as set forth in this 
Agreement prior to permitting Contractor’s Agent(s) to commence such portion of the Work. 

(b) Contractor shall require in its purchase orders that its suppliers indemnify Contractor and 
Indemnitees from all claims arising from any Materials included in any Work. 

18.9 Modifications.  

(a) Any attempt by Contractor to cancel or modify insurance coverage required by this Agreement, or 
any failure by Contractor to maintain such coverage, shall be a default under this Agreement and, upon such default, Pulte 
will have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement and/or exercise any of its rights at law or at equity. In addition 
to any other remedies, Pulte may, at its discretion, withhold payment of any sums due under this Agreement until Contractor 
provides adequate proof of insurance. 

(b) The amounts and types of insurance set forth above are minimums required by Pulte and shall not 
substitute for an independent determination by Contractor of the amounts and types of insurance which Contractor shall 
determine to be reasonably necessary to protect itself and its Work.  

19. TERMINATION 

19.1 By Contractor. Contractor may terminate this Agreement if Pulte commits a material breach of this 
Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 30 days of its receipt of written notice of the breach from Contractor. 

19.2 By Pulte. Pulte may terminate this Agreement or any individual Work Order, with or without cause, 
effective upon notice to Contractor. A termination “for cause” includes circumstances where: (a) Contractor fails to comply 
with this Agreement; (b) Contractor indicates or makes any statements indicating that Contractor will not perform its 
obligations under this Agreement; (c) in the event of any proceedings by or against Contractor in bankruptcy, insolvency of 
Contractor, any proceedings for appointment of a receiver or trustee or an assignment for the benefit of creditors or any 
other similar event; (d) Contractor refuses or neglects to supply Work of proper quality, as determined by Pulte; (e) 
Contractor fails to make prompt payment to Contractor’s Agents or for Materials, equipment or labor; (f) Contractor violates 
any Applicable Law; or (g) Contractor is listed by the administrative office of an applicable employee benefit trust, including 
by way of illustration but not exclusion, health, welfare, pension, vacation or apprenticeship trust, as being delinquent in 
the payment to any such trust, regardless of the construction project upon which delinquency occurred. 

(a) Pulte’s total liability to Contractor upon termination of any Work Order without cause shall be limited to 
payment for completed Work, including any retainage, delivered and accepted by Pulte. 

(b) If Pulte terminates any Work Order for cause, Pulte may immediately provide any required Work and 
Contractor shall reimburse and pay Pulte for all Costs. Pulte may deduct all such Costs from any money then due or 
thereafter to become due to Contractor under any Work Order. 

19.3 Post-Termination Obligations. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, 
Contractor will, at Pulte’s request, continue to provide Work pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and provide reasonable 
transition assistance services to prevent disruption in Pulte’s business activities, for a period of up to 3 months after the 
termination date. At Pulte’s request, Contractor will promptly vacate the Project jobsite(s), remove all of its supplies, 
scaffolding, tools, and other equipment from the Project jobsite(s), complete all of Contractor’s clean-up and other 
obligations, and otherwise reasonably cooperate with Pulte in winding down Contractor’s participation on the applicable 
Project(s). 

19.4 Survival. All provisions of this Agreement which by their nature should survive termination of this 
Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement, including those provisions related to confidentiality, warranty, 
indemnification, insurance, waivers, releases and limitations of liability. 

20. CONFIDENTIALITY AND PUBLICITY 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

161



  
 

21 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

20.1 Confidentiality. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor may have access to information that is 
considered confidential and proprietary by Pulte. This information may include non-public information relating to prices, 
compensation, research, products, services, developments, inventions, processes, protocols, methods of operations, 
techniques, strategies, programs (both software and firmware), designs, systems, proposed business arrangements, results 
of testing, distribution, engineering, marketing, financial, merchandising or sales information, individual customer profiles, 
customer lists or aggregated customer data, and similar information of a sensitive nature (“Confidential Information”). 
Contractor may use Confidential Information only for the purposes of this Agreement and Work Orders. Contractor shall 
maintain the confidentiality of Confidential Information in the same manner in which it protects its own Confidential 
Information of like kind, but in no event shall Contractor take less than reasonable precautions to prevent the unauthorized 
disclosure or use of Confidential Information. Upon request, Contractor shall return all Confidential Information and shall 
not use Confidential Information for its own, or any third party’s benefit. The provisions of this Section shall survive 
termination of this Agreement for so long as the Confidential Information is considered confidential by Pulte. 

20.2 Publicity. Contractor shall not use any Pulte trademarks, service marks, trade names or logos or refer to 
Pulte directly or indirectly in any marketing materials, customer lists, media release, public announcement or other public 
disclosure relating to this Agreement or its subject matter without obtaining Pulte’s prior written consent. 

21. GENERAL TERMS 

21.1 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in connection with all of Contractor’s obligations under this 
Agreement. 

21.2 Force Majeure. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, neither Party shall be liable for any failure or delay 
in performing its obligations hereunder during any period in which such performance is prevented or delayed by any Force 
Majeure Event. 

21.3 Independent Contractor Relationship. The relationship between Pulte and Contractor is that of 
independent contractor. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating a relationship between Pulte and 
Contractor of joint venturers, joint employers, partners, employer-employee, or agent. Neither party has the authority to 
create any obligations for the other, or to bind the other to any representation or document. Pulte does not control the Work 
or Contractor's employees, and Contractor is solely responsible for management and all other employer functions with 
respect to its employees. 

21.4 Continued Performance. Each party shall continue performing its obligations under this Agreement while 
any dispute submitted to litigation or any other dispute resolution process is being resolved until such obligations are 
terminated by the expiration or termination of this Agreement or by a final and binding award, order, or judgment to the 
contrary.  

21.5 Cooperation. Where agreement, approval, acceptance, consent or similar action by either party is required 
by any provision of this Agreement, such action shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld unless otherwise expressly 
permitted. 

21.6 Cumulative Rights. All warranties provided by Contractor, and all of Pulte’s rights and remedies set forth 
in this Agreement, are cumulative and are in addition to all other warranties, rights and remedies provided to Pulte by this 
Agreement, any other document, or at law, in equity or otherwise. 

21.7 Third Party Beneficiaries. The parties agree that: (a) this Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to this 
Agreement and is not intended to confer any rights or benefits on any third party (including any employee of either party) 
other than the Indemnitees; and (b) there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement, or any specific term of this 
Agreement, other than the Indemnitees. 

21.8 Entire Understanding of the Parties. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter addressed herein and supersedes, replaces and merges all prior understandings, promises, 
representations and agreements, whether written or oral, relating thereto. Upon execution of this MLTA, and any renewal 
thereof, the terms of this MLTA shall apply to all then-outstanding Work Orders or other agreements between Pulte and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

162



  
 

22 of 23 

FL_MLTA_12-10-18_(FL_2-14-19) 

Contractor. Both parties contributed to the drafting of this Agreement, and had the advice of counsel, and therefore agree 
that this Agreement should not be construed in favor of either party.  

21.9 No Modification Except in Writing. Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement may not be 
modified except by a writing signed by both parties.  

21.10 Construction of Terms. As used in this Agreement, the word “shall” is always mandatory and not 
discretionary; the word “may” is permissive; the word “includes” means “includes without limitation” and the word 
“including” means “including without limitation” or “including but not limited to.” 

21.11 No Waiver. Any waiver of a party’s right or remedy related to this Agreement must be in writing, signed 
by that party to be effective. No waiver shall be implied from a failure of either party to exercise a right or remedy. In 
addition, no waiver of a party’s right or remedy shall affect the other provisions of this Agreement. 

21.12 Choice of Law and Forum Selection. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state in which 
the Work is performed and the federal laws of the United States. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any 
litigation arising between the parties in relation to this Agreement shall be initiated and maintained in the state or federal 
courts in the state in which the Work is performed.  

21.13 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. In the event it becomes necessary for Pulte to enforce any of its rights under 
this Agreement against Contractor by legal action, Contractor agrees to reimburse Pulte for all of its legal and court expense 
in connection with such action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

21.14 Unenforceable Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid or unenforceable, such provision will be enforced to the fullest extent that it is valid and enforceable under 
Applicable Law. All other provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

21.15 Notice. Any demand, request or notice which either party desires or may be required to make or deliver to 
the other shall be in writing and delivered by electronic mail transmission, personal delivery, reputable overnight courier, 
or registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as set forth on page 1 or to such other 
address and person as either party may communicate to the other by written notice. Any notice or communication shall be 
deemed to have been given and received on the earliest of the following: (i) on the date of transmission, if delivered by 
electronic mail transmission on or before 5:00 p.m. on a business day, provided that written notice by one of the other 
approved methods of delivery is sent on the same day; (ii) on the next business day after transmission, if delivered by 
electronic mail transmission after 5:00 p.m. or on a Saturday, Sunday or state holiday, provided that written notice by one 
of the other approved methods of delivery is sent on the same day; (iii) on the date of delivery (or the first business day 
thereafter if delivered on a Saturday, Sunday or state holiday), if hand delivered or sent by overnight courier, with a written 
acknowledgement of receipt; or (iv) three (3) business days after the date of mailing, if sent by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices given by legal counsel for any Party shall constitute notice from that 
Party. Notice by facsimile transmission is not an authorized form of notice under this Agreement. 

21.16 Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the other party’s prior 
written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any attempted assignment without such written 
consent shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Pulte may assign this Agreement without Contractor’s consent: (a) to 
one or more Affiliates, provided that each such Affiliate agrees to be bound by this Agreement; and (b) as reasonably 
necessary in connection with any merger, acquisition, sale of assets or other corporate restructuring. Subject to the provisions 
of this Section, this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. 

22. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. FOR THEIR MUTUAL BENEFIT, PULTE AND CONTRACTOR WAIVE 
ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION REGARDING THE PERFORMANCE OR 
ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO, THIS AGREEMENT. 

Exhibits to this Agreement consist of: [Pulte Homebuilding Operations to identify additional Exhibits]  

Exhibit A: _______________________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

163



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7791BA7A-631E-4984-81DB-0F12E4BB8407

Patrick Gonzalez

VP Land Development

3/29/2021

164



C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 IN

VO
IC

E 
IN

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
S

PL
EA

SE
 C

O
N

TA
C

T 
PA

TR
IC

K 
G

O
N

ZA
LE

Z 
W

IT
H

 Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

S

PR
O

C
ES

S:
ST

EP
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 / 
TA

B
TA

SK
1

D
ET

AI
L 

TA
B

FI
LL

 IN
 Y

EL
LO

W
 C

EL
LS

 O
F 

IN
VO

IC
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 A

T 
TO

P 
R

IG
H

T.
 D

AT
E 

C
AN

N
O

T 
BE

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

N
TR

AC
T 

D
AT

E.
2

D
ET

AI
L 

TA
B

C
O

PY
 Y

EL
LO

W
 C

EL
LS

 O
F 

"Q
TY

" C
O

LU
M

N
 O

F 
"T

O
TA

L 
PA

YM
EN

T 
R

EL
EA

SE
 R

EQ
U

ES
TS

 T
O

 D
AT

E"
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 T
O

 "P
R

EV
IO

U
S 

PA
YM

EN
T 

R
EL

EA
SE

 R
EQ

U
ES

T"
 C

O
LU

M
N

3
D

ET
AI

L 
TA

B
D

EL
ET

E 
AL

L 
IT

EM
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

YE
LL

O
W

 C
EL

LS
 O

F 
TH

E 
"Q

TY
" C

O
LU

M
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

"C
U

R
R

EN
T 

PA
YM

EN
T 

R
EL

EA
SE

 R
EQ

U
ES

T"
 S

EC
TI

O
N

4
D

ET
AI

L 
TA

B
IN

PU
T 

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 Q

U
AN

TI
TI

ES
 T

O
 B

E 
PA

ID
 IN

 T
H

E 
"Q

TY
" C

O
LU

M
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

"C
U

R
R

EN
T 

PA
YM

EN
T 

R
EL

EA
SE

 R
EQ

U
ES

T"
 S

EC
TI

O
N

5
D

ET
AI

L 
TA

B
C

O
N

FI
R

M
 "T

O
TA

L 
C

O
ST

" C
O

LU
M

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
R

ED
.  

IF
 IT

 IS
 R

ED
 A

N
 E

R
R

O
R

 E
XI

ST
S 

IN
 R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 U

N
IT

 N
U

M
BE

R
 N

EE
D

S 
AD

JU
ST

IN
G

6
D

ET
AI

L 
TA

B
C

O
N

FI
R

M
 P

R
O

C
ES

SE
D

 A
N

D
 C

U
R

R
EN

T 
TO

TA
LS

 O
N

 S
U

M
M

AR
Y 

SH
EE

T 
M

AT
C

H
 T

O
TA

LS
 O

N
 D

ET
AI

L 
SH

EE
T

9
N

/A
SU

BM
IT

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
'S

 IN
VO

IC
E 

AN
D

 IN
IT

IA
LE

D
/E

XE
C

U
TE

D
 S

U
M

M
AR

Y 
PA

G
E,

 D
ET

AI
L 

PA
G

ES
, A

N
D

 P
AY

 R
EQ

U
ES

T 
PA

G
E 

AL
O

N
G

 W
IT

H
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

'S
 IN

VO
IC

E 
AN

D
 U

PD
AT

ED
 E

LE
C

TR
O

N
IC

 V
ER

SI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

IS
 F

IL
E

165



CONTRACT DETAILS: TO BE FILLED IN BY PULTE MANAGER
COMMUNITY Del Webb @ Tradition - Phase 5A

PROJECT # 6266
LDM Dinsmore

ACCOUNT # 140100-0099
ACCT UNIT # 410

PHASE # 00001
PHASE #
PHASE #
PHASE #
PHASE #
PHASE #
PHASE #

SCOPE Phase 5A - PAAR Drive Water Main Extension 
CONTRACTOR Pipeline Utilities

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS 3610 Fiscal Court
CONTRACTOR CITY, ST, ZIP Riviera Beach

CONTACT PERSON Clayton Jackson
CONTACT NUMBER 561-239-4475

CONTACT EMAIL clayton@pipelineutilities.com
CONTRACT START DATE 1/10/2022

ORIG CONTRACT 
COMPLETION DATE

EARLY PAY DISC 0.00%
EARLY DISC CODING PHASE

CONTRACT # 6266PIP012022
RETAINAGE % 10.00%

CODING DETAILS:
COST CODE

10494 10494

166



LU
M

P 
SU

M
 C

ON
TR

AC
T 

PA
YM

EN
T 

RE
LE

AS
E 

SC
H

ED
UL

E
PU

LT
E 

GR
O

U
P 

10
70

PO
 B

O
X 

36
60

PO
RT

LA
N

D
 O

R 
97

20
8

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
D

el
 W

eb
b 

@
 T

ra
di

ti
on

 - 
Ph

as
e 

5A
CO

N
T 

/ 
W

O 
# 

 
62

66
PI

P0
12

02
2

SC
O

PE
Ph

as
e 

5A
 - 

PA
AR

 D
ri

ve
 W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

IN
VO

IC
E 

# 
   

   
   

 
?

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R

Pi
pe

lin
e 

U
ti

lit
ie

s
PA

Y 
AP

P 
#

1
CO

N
TA

CT
 P

ER
SO

N
Cl

ay
to

n 
Ja

ck
so

n
DA

TE
?

CO
N

TA
CT

 N
U

M
BE

R
56

1-
23

9-
44

75
PR

O
J #

62
66

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
D

AT
E

1/
10

/2
02

2

PR
EV

IO
U

S 
PA

YM
EN

T
CU

RR
EN

T 
PA

YM
EN

T
TO

TA
L 

PM
T 

RE
LE

AS
E

To
ta

l

RE
LE

AS
E 

RE
Q

U
ES

T
RE

LE
AS

E 
RE

Q
U

ES
T

RE
Q

U
ES

TS
 T

O
 D

AT
E

CT
C

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
RE

LE
AS

E

Q
TY

 &
 U

N
IT

 P
RI

CE

U
N

IT
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L
CO

ST
 T

O

 
 

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
IT

EM
PR

IC
E

RE
LE

AS
E

PR
EV

PA
YM

EN
T

CO
ST

 T
O

 D
AT

E
CO

M
PL

ET
E

Y

IT

Y

TY

Y

se
t

t U
nit

ivity
t C

at

PR
IC

E
PA

ID
RE

Q
U

ES
T

00
00

1
14

01
00

-0
09

9
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

Of
fs

ite
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
LS

1
$7

00
,9

83
.7

5
$7

00
,9

83
.7

5
0.

0%
$0

.0
0

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

$0
.0

0
$7

00
,9

83
.7

5

T 
O

 T
 A

 L
 :

$7
00

,9
83

.7
5

$0
.0

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
05

00
-0

00
0

RE
TA

IN
AG

E 
H

EL
D

 (I
F 

AP
PL

IC
AB

LE
)

RE
TA

IN
AG

E 
H

EL
D

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

14
01

00
-0

09
9

62
66

-2
00

00
10

00
01

10
41

6
EA

RL
Y 

PA
Y 

D
IS

CO
U

N
T

0.
0%

AP
PL

IC
AB

LE
 T

O 
TH

IS
 IN

VO
IC

E?
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

DE
TA

IL
 T

OT
AL

70
0,

98
3.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
PA

Y 
TH

IS
 A

M
T:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

IN
IT

IA
LS

:
EN

GI
N

EE
R 

IN
IT

IA
LS

:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

CH
EC

K 
(E

RR
OR

 IF
 N

OT
 0

)
$0

.0
0

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

Th
e 

ab
ov

e 
lis

te
d 

qu
an

tit
ie

s a
nd

 u
ni

t p
ri

ce
s a

re
 fo

r p
ar

tia
l p

ay
m

en
t r

el
ea

se
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y.

  T
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t A
m

ou
nt

 is
 th

e 
Lu

m
p 

Su
m

 A
m

ou
nt

(s
)

QTY

UNIT

QTY

QT

QTY

 

Phase
Acct

Acct U
Activ

ity

Acct C
a

167



IN
VO

IC
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

:
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

De
l W

eb
b 

@
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

- P
ha

se
 5

A
CO

N
T 

/ 
W

O 
# 

 
62

66
PI

P0
12

02
2

SC
O

PE
Ph

as
e 

5A
 - 

PA
AR

 D
ri

ve
 W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

IN
VO

IC
E 

N
UM

BE
R

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ut
ili

tie
s

PA
Y 

AP
P#

1
CO

N
TA

CT
 P

ER
SO

N
Cl

ay
to

n 
Ja

ck
so

n
IN

VO
IC

E 
DA

TE
PR

O
J #

62
66

DI
SC

 A
PP

LI
ES

?
CO

N
TR

AC
T 

D
AT

E
1/

10
/2

02
2

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
RE

LE
AS

E
PR

EV
IO

U
S 

PA
YM

EN
T

CU
RR

EN
T 

PA
YM

EN
T

Q
TY

 &
 U

N
IT

 P
RI

CE
RE

LE
AS

E 
RE

Q
U

ES
T

RE
LE

AS
E 

RE
Q

U
ES

T
TO

TA
L 

PA
YM

EN
T 

RE
LE

AS
E

RE
Q

U
ES

TS
 T

O
 D

AT
E

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
IT

EM
U

N
IT

A
B

C
D

E 
= 

D
 x

 B
F

G 
= 

F 
x 

B
H

 =
 D

 +
 F

I =
 H

 x
 B

J=
 H

 /
 A

Q
TY

U
N

IT
TO

TA
L

Q
TY

TO
TA

L
Q

TY
TO

TA
L 

PA
YM

EN
T

Q
TY

TO
TA

L
%

PR
IC

E
 P

RI
CE

PR
EV

IO
U

S 
PA

ID
RE

Q
U

ES
T

CO
ST

CO
M

P.
ER

RO
R 

IF
=

D
O

 N
O

T 
U

SE
 T

H
IS

 L
IN

E
-

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
PA

AR
 D

ri
ve

 - 
16

" W
at

er
 M

ai
n 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
-

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

M
ob

ili
za

tio
n 

&
 S

up
er

vi
si

on
LS

1.
00

00
$1

5,
00

0.
00

15
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

Su
rv

ey
, L

ay
ou

t a
nd

 A
s-

bu
ilt

s
LS

1.
00

00
$1

3,
00

0.
00

13
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

De
ns

ity
 T

es
t

LS
1.

00
00

$3
,3

50
.0

0
3,

35
0.

00
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

W
at

er
 M

ai
n 

- 1
6"

 C
-9

00
LF

3,
70

1.
00

00
$1

26
.0

0
46

6,
32

6.
00

$ 
    

    
    

  
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

W
at

er
 P

re
ss

ur
e 

Te
st

LF
3,

70
1.

00
00

$3
.0

0
11

,1
03

.0
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
 

00
99

41
0-

62
66

-0
1

62
66

-2
00

00
10

00
01

10
49

4
OR

IG
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Sa

m
pl

e 
Po

in
ts

EA
4.

00
00

$9
50

.0
0

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

00
99

41
0-

62
66

-0
1

62
66

-2
00

00
10

00
01

10
49

4
OR

IG
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Fi

ll 
&

 F
lu

sh
 - 

4"
EA

1.
00

00
$2

9,
75

0.
00

29
,7

50
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

W
at

er
 M

ai
n 

16
" G

at
e 

Va
lv

e 
w

ith
 B

ox
EA

6.
00

00
$8

,1
65

.0
0

48
,9

90
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

Fi
re

 H
yd

ra
nt

 A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

8.
00

00
$6

,2
35

.0
0

49
,8

80
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

W
at

er
 M

ai
n 

2"
 B

lo
w

of
f

EA
1.

00
00

$2
,1

50
.0

0
2,

15
0.

00
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

Si
lt 

Fe
nc

e
LF

7,
50

0.
00

00
$1

.1
0

8,
25

0.
00

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

14
01

00
-

00
99

41
0-

62
66

-0
1

62
66

-2
00

00
10

00
01

10
49

4
OR

IG
Gr

in
d/

Cl
ea

r/
Di

sp
os

e 
Ap

pr
ox

 3
,7

00
 L

F 
X 

20
 L

F 
Ar

ea
 o

f E
xi

st
in

g 
Ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

W
ith

in
 P

AA
R 

Dr
iv

e 
Ro

w
LS

1.
00

00
$1

3,
30

0.
00

13
,3

00
.0

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

 
00

99
41

0-
62

66
-0

1
62

66
-2

00
00

10
00

01
10

49
4

OR
IG

Gr
ad

e 
&

 S
od

LF
3,

70
1.

00
00

$9
.7

5
36

,0
84

.7
5

$ 
    

    
    

    
 

-
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

Acct
CNT / CO

Acct C
at

Activ
ity

Acct U
nit

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 IN

IT
IA

LS
:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
4 

O
F 

5

PU
LT

E 
IN

IT
IA

LS
:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

168



IN
VO

IC
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

:
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

De
l W

eb
b 

@
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

- P
ha

se
 5

A
CO

N
T 

/ 
W

O 
# 

 
62

66
PI

P0
12

02
2

SC
O

PE
Ph

as
e 

5A
 - 

PA
AR

 D
ri

ve
 W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

IN
VO

IC
E 

N
UM

BE
R

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ut
ili

tie
s

PA
Y 

AP
P#

1
CO

N
TA

CT
 P

ER
SO

N
Cl

ay
to

n 
Ja

ck
so

n
IN

VO
IC

E 
DA

TE
PR

O
J #

62
66

DI
SC

 A
PP

LI
ES

?
CO

N
TR

AC
T 

D
AT

E
1/

10
/2

02
2

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
RE

LE
AS

E
PR

EV
IO

U
S 

PA
YM

EN
T

CU
RR

EN
T 

PA
YM

EN
T

Q
TY

 &
 U

N
IT

 P
RI

CE
RE

LE
AS

E 
RE

Q
U

ES
T

RE
LE

AS
E 

RE
Q

U
ES

T
TO

TA
L 

PA
YM

EN
T 

RE
LE

AS
E

RE
Q

U
ES

TS
 T

O
 D

AT
E

CO
N

TR
AC

T 
IT

EM
U

N
IT

A
B

C
D

E 
= 

D
 x

 B
F

G 
= 

F 
x 

B
H

 =
 D

 +
 F

I =
 H

 x
 B

J=
 H

 /
 A

Q
TY

U
N

IT
TO

TA
L

Q
TY

TO
TA

L
Q

TY
TO

TA
L 

PA
YM

EN
T

Q
TY

TO
TA

L
%

PR
IC

E
 P

RI
CE

PR
EV

IO
U

S 
PA

ID
RE

Q
U

ES
T

CO
ST

CO
M

P.
Acct

CNT / CO

Acct C
at

Activ
ity

Acct U
nit

-
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  -

$ 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  -
$ 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

Gr
an

d 
To

ta
l

70
0,

98
3.

75
$ 

    
    

    

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 IN

IT
IA

LS
:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
5 

O
F 

5

PU
LT

E 
IN

IT
IA

LS
:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 1 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 Steven Dassa Assistant Secretary 

 James Fitzgerald  Assistant Secretary 

 Carolyn DeSanti Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary  Chairman 

182



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 2, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 2 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 2: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 Steven Dassa Assistant Secretary 

 James Fitzgerald  Assistant Secretary 

 Carolyn DeSanti Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 2 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary Chairman 

183



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 3 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 David Graham Assistant Secretary 

 Wes McCurry Assistant Secretary 

 Steven Dassa Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman 

184



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 4 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 David Graham Assistant Secretary 

 Wes McCurry Assistant Secretary 

 Jeff Snyder Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman 

185



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 5, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 5 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 5: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 David Graham Assistant Secretary 

 Wes McCurry Assistant Secretary 

 Steven Dassa Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 5 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman 

186



RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING THE OFFICERS OF SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 6, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Southern Grove Community Development District 6 (the “District”), is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statues, being situated entirely within the St. lucie County, Florida; and 
 WHEREAS, the initial supervisors have taken and subscribed to the oath of office per 
F.S. 190.006(4); and 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”) now desires to organize 
by designating the Officers of the District per F.S. 190.006(6). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 6: 

 
 1.  The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 Frank Covelli  Chairman 

 Anissa Cruz Vice-Chairman  

 B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. Secretary/Treasurer 

 David Graham Assistant Secretary 

 Wes McCurry Assistant Secretary 

 Jeff Snyder Assistant Secretary 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY  
 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 6 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman 

187



Financial Report: 
(Under Separate Cover) 

188


	Cover Page
	Agenda 
	Proof of Publication
	Minutes 2.10.21
	WA #19-144-165; Heron Preserve/Phase 2
	WA #19-144-167; Innovation Square
	WA #19-144-168; Tom Mackie Blvd
	WA #19-144-101; Oculus
	WA #19-144-166; Legacy Park/Middle Drive Access
	WA #19-144-169; Duda Canal Expansion 2
	Change Order #9; Project No. 2021-203 - Becker Rd Ext Phase 1
	Bond Req No. 6 - CDD No. 5
	Bond Req No. 7 - CDD No. 5
	Bond Req No. 8 - CDD No. 5
	Bond Req No. 9 - CDD No. 5
	Bond Req No. 10 - CDD No. 5
	Bond Req No. 11 - CDD No. 5
	ITB #2020-04; Cont. Services Agreement for Misc. Construction Activities 
	Paar Drive/West - Water Mains; 2021 CI Project /Partial Assisgnment of Contractor Agreement CDD No. 5 
	Resolution No. 2022-01; Election of Officers 
	Financial Report (Under Separate Cover)



